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CHAIR NISHIKI:
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COUNC1LMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR NISHIKI: --Mateo, Medeiros -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Aloha and good morning, Chair.
CHAIR NISHIKI: --Victorino -COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO: Good morning, Chair.
CHAIR NISHIKI: --present. Excused are Members Jo Anne Johnson. Also with us today is the
proposer of the bill, Mr. Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Good morning, Chairman.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Michael. And again the bill is Item 25, Members. It's "A BILL FOR AN
ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 6.04, MAUI COUNTY CODE, PERTAINING
TO ANIMAL CONTROL". Let the Members know that we've got public, written public
testimony. Also in front of you are the bill that was proposed and returned to this
Committee via the Council. And in the bill, which says draft copy for review, it shows
you in parentheses, because this can be confusing. Anything in parentheses is language
that is being proposed by the task force. Again, Members and people of the general
public, this task force was voluntary, so therefore none of the meetings were posted.
However, if you are aware also in your binders, the task force was made up of
representatives from the Maui Humane Society, the U.S. Humane Society. I'll name you
the members who represented them: Jocelyn Bouchard from the Maui Humane Society;
Inga Gibson, who was the representative from the United States Humane Society; John
Guard, who is a pet shop owner; Mr. Rob Hoonan from the Grand Wailea representing
the visitor industry and that major resort; Bob Bruck, a commercial aquarium collector;
Dr. Diane Shepherd, a veterinarian; from the Hawaii Reef Fish Recovery Project, Rene
Umberger; from the Pacific Whale Foundation, Tracy Jones; from the Mayor's office,
Kuheo...Kuhea Paracuelles; and two members from the Maui Ocean Center, Kate
Zolezzi and John Gorman. And at times I, I think we had Mr. Ueoka, from the
Corporation Counsel present. And, Michael Molina, I think you had a representative also
that attended some of the meetings?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, my assistant, Gary Saldana, I guess on occasion did
attend some of the sessions.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Gary Saldana also. And Chair apologizes if I was remiss in not also giving
other members of the general public recognition in these meetings that they held. I'm
sure that during testimony we'll hear from some of the members. But if there are no
objections at this point in time, the Chair would accept public testimony. Any
objections?
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COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Seeing none, Rene Umberger, representing the Aquatic Life Animal Control
Task Force.

. . . BEGIN PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
MS. UMBERGER: Good morning, Chair Nishiki and Council Members. I was wondering if I
might have a little bit more than the standard three minutes to speak for the task force?
Many of the task force members can't be here today so I was hoping to just review our
recommendations. Is that okay?
CHAIR NISHIKI: Go ahead.
MS. UMBERGER: Okay. So, I'm Rene Umberger, Director of the Hawaii Reef Fish Recovery
Project. I'm here today to present support for PS-25 and the recommendations developed
by the task force. The task force was formed at the request of several Council Members
to find effective solutions to the community concerns with the first draft of this bill. The
task force drafted recommendations to ensure that only those selling Hawaii's marine life
as aquarium pets would be covered and impacted by the ordinance. So, that would be
aquarium collectors, wholesalers, and retailers. Specifically excluded from the scope of
coverage are all fishermen, women, and children fishing for food or fishing for bait. But
those with fresh or salt water aquariums in their homes or offices, those with koi ponds,
fish ponds, hotels and businesses with aquariums, and the Maui Ocean Center. The last
page of the task force report does outline the distinctions of who is and who isn't
impacted by our recommendations.
Along with the ten-member task force, other people also had input. Skippy Young, a
Hana resident and fish/stream-flow advocate, he was invited but he couldn't attend. His
daughter, Ali Young, reviewed the recommendations with no additional comments.
Additionally, Daniel Kanahele, a concerned citizen, reviewed the recommendations with
no additional comments. Three invitees declined to participate, a commercial collector
named Eric Koch, Darrell Tanaka, a fisher's advocate, and Todd Stevenson, an aquarium
trade researcher, as well as the DLNR representative. All were invited but declined.
Several others were suggested as participants, however, since their areas of expertise
were already well represented by other members and in the interest of having a workable
group, they were not invited, but they were...task force members had the choice of
having them as alternates. The task force met in five one and a half hour sessions, and at
each session, there were eight to ten members present and participating.
During the first task force meeting, participants expressed their concerns with the content,
purpose, and/or need for the bill. The State animal cruelty law was reviewed along with
aquarium trade practices of concern. To keep us on track the group agreed that the goal
of the bill is to protect, preserve, and conserve dwindling reef species and critical reef
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ecosystems. The objective of the bill is to reduce mortality associated with commercial
reef fish species collected and sold for aquarium purposes in Maui County. The task
force worked to clarify, the task force worked to clarify the bills intent and purpose,
address all unintended consequences, reduce enforcement difficulties and ensure that all
concerns were adequately addressed. Each section of the proposed bill was reviewed,
discussed, and modified until consensus was reached. The task force appreciates the
opportunity to come together to help protect Maui County's coral reef wildlife. Special
thanks go to Gary Saldana and Jeff Ueoka, who attended the meetings and answered
questions as needed, and to the Pacific Whale Foundation for hosting the meetings.
Thanks to the concerted efforts of all, the task force is able to unanimously recommend
the amendments to the Aquatic Life Animal Control Bill.
If it's okay, I'd like to just review them briefly and explain why we thought they needed
to be included. Is that okay?
CHAIR NISHIKI: You know, Rene, if we need any clarification -MS. UMBERGER: Okay.
CHAIR NISHIKI: --we'll call you at the end just because Members have your pass out and also
the justification. But if we need any clarification, we will call you.
MS. UMBERGER: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR NISHIKI: But go ahead -MS. UMBERGER: No.
CHAIR NISHIKI: --with the rest of it. But we've got the justification.
MS. UMBERGER: No, that would be it. That's, that's the end of my testimony.
CHAIR NISHIKI: And we thank you for your good work. Mr. Molina, I will ask you to ask
questions first as the introducer of the bill.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay, thank, thank you, Mr. Chairman. I, I'll thank the
Committee for giving me this privilege. Good morning, Ms. Umberger, and thank you
for your work with the task force. I know it came at the suggestion of the Committee and
I think it was a good idea to get, put, collectively put together all of the minds to come up
with a compromise if at all. And you mentioned that you did invite those who were, I
guess, who had spoken out initially against the bill and they declined to participate. Can
you tell us why in your testimony? You mentioned that they declined. Was there
specific reasons why they declined to participate?
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MS. UMBERGER: I think they had personal reasons for not wanting to participate. I can't
speak for them, and maybe if they're here you'd, maybe they'll be able to speak to it,
but -COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
MS. UMBERGER: --we wanted to make sure that everyone's concerns were addressed and so
specifically for those who didn't attend, we attempted to address the concerns that they
had mentioned in their testimony.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. And, and looking at the representatives for all the
entities that were part of this task force, which includes the Maui Ocean Center, and at
the end of you know, the final meeting, everybody signed off on the recommendations
for this bill?
MS. UMBERGER: Not only that, but everyone unanimously voted on every single
recommendation. So it was a redundant. Each separate recommendation was, got
unanimous approval as did the package as a whole.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. So, this includes Maui Ocean Center, Maui Humane
Society, Pet Shop, The Grand Wailea Resort, Pacific Whale Foundation, and so forth.
MS. UMBERGER: Yes. And that's specifically because we worked diligently to include
everyone's concerns and work it out to, so that everyone was happy with what was being
recommended. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you very much. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Any questions from Committee Members? Mr. Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Ms. Umberger, thank you for
being here. Thank you for your testimony.
MS. UMBERGER: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I just wanted to know in developing this draft copy of the
bill for an ordinance that you submitted... and I tried to see if I could find the answer to
my question but I didn't come across it immediately... is how does this bill address
endemic species of fish in Hawaii?
MS. UMBERGER: It, it does not specifically address endemic species. There are no specific
protections for endemic species. All the animals need to be treated humanely, that all
animals, including the endemic species, need to be treated the same.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And, and that's, that's good except that there's a
part, I think, that was part of your testimony that said that men, women, children are
exempted from the taking of reef fish for home consumption, for home salt water
aquariums and so forth. In, in the task force discussion of this, was there any discussion
about the taking of endemic fishes, which are fishes that only exist here? Was there any
discussion on that in developing this draft bill?
MS. UMBERGER: We did not specifically go there because we believed that that would be
under the jurisdiction of the State because the taking of those animals occurs in, within
the State's jurisdiction. So, I think that we felt that that crossed the line and that would
be something for the State to take up.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh. But it was alright to exempt people from taking
any reef fish? As far as fishermen, fisherwomen, and children?
MS. UMBERGER: We wanted to make sure that people knew that this did not have, pertain to
people who were out there fishing for food or doing what they would... any type of taking
that didn't pertain specifically to taking aquarium fish with the purpose of selling them.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, thank you for your clarification. Mahalo,
Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR NISHIKI: You're welcome. Any other questions? Chair was remiss. Let the record
show, first of all, the presence of Councilmember Jo Anne Johnson. You're excused
Rene. Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Thank you.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Also with us today, we have Deputy Corporation Counsel Jeffrey Ueoka.
MR. UEOKA: Good morning.
CHAIR NISHIKI: And from our Staff, Scott Jensen, Scott Kaneshina, and our Committee
Secretary, Clarita Balala. Thank you. Next testifier will be Keiko Bonk, followed by
John Gorman. Keiko is representing an organization, PONO, as its Director. And also, a
fellow Council Member from the Big Island, right?
MS. BONK: Former. . .(laughs). . .
CHAIR NISHIKI: We remember you.
MS. BONK: I remember you, all of you too. . .(laughs). . Thank you very much for this
opportunity to speak. My name is Keiko Bonk and I know most of you. And I, I thank
you for this opportunity. I've been here before to talk to you about ocean's issues and I
really appreciate you taking this time to discuss the ocean even further. Aloha, Chairman
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Nishiki and Members of the Public Service Committee. I thank you for this initiative to
ensure that aquatic animals are treated humanely in Maui County. I'm happy to see that
Maui County is once again leading the State of Hawaii in ocean protection. I hope that
the other counties will join you in this lead to restore and maintain our, a healthy ocean
ecosystem. I know many of you have been leaders in the community for decades and 1
know that you are very familiar with the rapid decline of our natural resources. We have
seen more than enough empirical data showing evidence of this decay. We are all in
agreement that our nearshore reefs are suffering from complex problems. The
degradation caused by invasive species and marine pollution will take years to reverse.
We have just begun to clean up long-time polluted ocean areas of Hawaii. Some reefs of
Hawaii may never recover from decades of dumping raw sewage and the runoff from
urban development. Marine debris, coral bleaching, and ocean acidification are global
problems that are also impacting Hawaii's reefs. The ocean has faced years of negative
consequences from the long ago whaling industry, the plantation agribusinesses, the
international real estate industry, and the international fishing industry. These impacts
have all added to the, Hawaii's decline of our ocean.
As leaders in Hawaii, you face a dire situation that didn't happen overnight. I do not
envy you. You will be facing more and more controversial decisions regarding the
management of our public resources and you will also face the anger of people acting out
of frustration towards depleted ocean resources. It is very important to deepen the public
understanding of responsible ocean management in order to solve the problems of our
diminishing resources. We have lived way beyond our means in Hawaii for the last
200 years by making an open call to the world to exploit our natural resources without
limitations. In this way, we have developed unsustainable practices and we now have to
eliminate many of our bad practices and choose wisely the practices that are responsible
and worth keeping. Not all practices are responsible and we must discontinue the ones
that do not assist in increasing the health of Hawaii's ocean life for multiple generations
to come. We have depleted 90 percent of the ocean life on Earth... not us here in Hawaii,
but collectively on the planet. Human beings have participated in this. And now we need
to take care of the last 10 percent.
On top of this, Hawaii has the most extinct species in the world and the most endangered
species in the world. The latest number is 439 species according to the U.S. Fish and
Wildlife Services are endangered in Hawaii, and many of these wild things are found
nowhere else on Earth. Recovery of 439 species is a difficult concept to grasp for most
of our resource managers. This dramatic rate of extinction is linked to our human
encroachment and our unsustainable practices. It is just not pono to take ocean wildlife
as pets. The private aquarium industry is about conspicuous consumption and display. It
promotes a value that is in direct opposition to the human restraint and conservation that
we desperately need to instill in our culture to recover our reefs and our oceans.
The bottom line is that we have eaten most of the ocean's fish. We have not sufficiently
replenished the fish and the oceans are dying. It's time to cut back on the unnecessary
take starting with no more coral as jewelry, no more fish as office decor. We have to stop
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this use of our resources as what we call today, "bling". This kind of take is morally
unjustified. Taking anything from the ocean for novelty or decor adds more stress to an
already complex series of health problems that the ocean cannot endure.
Thank you so much for taking steps towards responsible management of wild ocean
animals. I commend you for moving towards the best practices to protect Hawaii's
natural environment. Mahalo for your time and for your consideration. And keep
leading the State. Aloha.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Thank you very much, Keiko. Any questions for Keiko? Seeing none, again
thank you -MS. BONK: Thank you so much.
CHAIR NISHIKI: --for traveling and giving your testimony. John Gorman, representing Maui
Ocean Center, he is their Chief Curator, followed by Robert Wintner.
MR. GORMAN: Aloha, Chair Nishiki, Vice-Chair Pontanilla, and Honorable Members of the
Committee. My name is John Gorman. As stated, I am the curator at Maui Ocean
Center. Basically, what that means is I'm in charge of the maintenance of the exhibits,
the feeding of the animals, the care for the animals, the design of exhibits, et cetera. It's a
very hands-on activity. It's not a desk job, if you want. It's something that we do on a
seven-days-a-week basis.
Thank you for the opportunity to come in and share proposed amendments on this bill as
the curator of Maui Ocean Center, and I also was an alternate member of the Aquatic Life
Animal Control Task Force. I am committed to the preservation of reef ecosystems and
efforts to protect Hawaii's very precious ocean life. I believe the task force was in
agreement that the proposed ordinance is not necessarily intended to impact Maui Ocean
Center's operations, and we do greatly appreciate the task force recommendations to
amend Section 3 G, by adding the language to exclude MOC, meaning any person who
collects aquatic lifeibr sale for aquarium purposes. Maui Ocean Center, as you know,
does not collect marine life to sell or for shipment outside of the State or outside of Maui
itself
We offer the following additional amendments for your consideration. We feel that these
are actually important to our operations. And number one is that the language referring
to, "or for public exhibition or display," in Section 2, we would humbly request that that
be deleted. We feel that is directly in reference to Maui Ocean Center as we are the only
entity that does publically exhibit for display marine animals here in Maui County.
The definition of aquarium purposes, we feel, should be clarified by adding the
following: "Salt water fish, fresh water non-game fish, or other aquatic life held alive in
the state of captivity for educational display or scientific study, or as food for human
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consumption, or for propagation for those purposes shall not be considered as aquarium
purposes "
Additionally, the Committee may also want to reference HRS Section 711-1109, Cruelty
to Animals in the Second Degree, which exempts the following recognized activities by
adding a new section to the draft ordinance referencing the State exemptions for accepted
veterinarian practices; activities carried on for scientific research governed by standards
of accepted educational or medicinal practices.
It is important to note that some of the practices in this bill is trying to prevent are
actually often life-saving treatments. For instance, the pinning of fish. The penalties
proposed in this measure are not in line or consistent with current penalties for cruelty to
other animals, and given the significant impacts this bill could have on our operations, we
respectfully ask for your thoughtful consideration of our requested amendments.
Thank you for your continued support of Maui Ocean Center and our educational efforts
and educational efforts within the County. And thank you so much for your time.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Questions from Committee Members?
COUNCILMEMBER VICTORINO. Chair?
CHAIR NISHIKI: Jo Anne?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes. I wanna thank you for making the recommendations.
One of the recommendations... and I guess, you know, when we get into the discussion
we'll deal with this. But you're familiar with the Cetacean Exhibition Bill that is law in
the County of Maui?
MR. GORMAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. Because of the definition where you broaden the
exemption, do you believe with the definitions saying, you know, like aquatic life and
with no specific reference to cetaceans or exclusion of cetaceans from this, do you
believe that that creates a potential conflict now with gutting the Cetacean Exhibition
Bill?
MR. GORMAN: Not necessarily. No, I don't. I don't. N
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Are you absolutely certain? Have you had that checked by
the attorney that there would not be a conflict now?
MR. GORMAN: No, I haven't.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Or a potential conflict?
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MR. GORMAN: No, I have not.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
MR. GORMAN: I'm actually doing this on my own behalf, so.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. All right. Thank you very much.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Any questions? Sol?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Yes, thank you. Mr. Gorman, did you bring
these, these concerns up to the, to the working group?
MR. GORMAN: Yeah, we have consistently brought them up. We brought them before this
Committee. We brought them before the Council meetings. They are concerns that we
have. We, you know, we feel comfortable with clauses inserted saying for sale and
obviously that benefits us and alleviates some of our concerns, but we still feel that for
public exhibition or display...in essence it's, it's kind of tying us in, if you want, with
perhaps some practices or, that are detrimental to the environment. So, we feel
uncomfortable with...I, I wouldn't like to say being targeted, but it feels like adding
public exhibition or display is directly referencing Maui Ocean Center.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA. And, and in raising this with the working group,
what was the, the discussion or the, the decision or consensus on this?
MR. GORMAN: Just like this Committee, just like the Council, there is a number of individuals
sitting in wise discussion. In most of your dealings, I'm sure there is one or two
Members who are in minority and who feel that the, the majority decision is what is
carried for the day, basically. We've stated this continually and we continue to state it
that we feel uncomfortable with the inclusion of public exhibition or display.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. In your testimony, you have an
additional, you wanted to add to the aquarium purposes section.

MR. GORMAN: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: This is to add the entirety of this?
MR. GORMAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you for that clarification then. I
have no other questions, Chair.
CHAIR NISHIKI: I think he had a question. Mr. Medeiros?
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman. Thank you for being here this
morning for your testimony. I just wanted to find out about the Maui Ocean Center. Do
you have at the Center on display endemic fishes?
MR. GORMAN: Yes, indeed.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. GORMAN: Endemic fishes, I can understand the, the feeling that endemic fishes should
remain on the reef because they are a unique body of animals that are exclusive to
Hawaii, and it's actually important for us at Maui Ocean Center to have the opportunity
to display endemics because that is part of our mission, if you want. We need to be able
to tell people that sure, you have visited other aquariums and yeah, you visited the
Georgia Aquarium and you visited this aquarium and they're perhaps bigger and grander,
but we do have uniqueness here in Hawaii. And the uniqueness is that because of our
isolation and because of other factors, there are about 25 percent of the reef critters that
basically are unique to Hawaii. And I think it's very important that there is a strong
education component that is emphasizing that particularly to our visitors, otherwise it can
be just the same old blah. You know, these are just fish that we saw them in Florida. We
saw them here. And perhaps they lose some of the respect for the uniqueness of what
actually is here in Hawaii.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And does the Maui Ocean Center keep records of endemic
species of ocean life that die in captivity?
MR. GORMAN. We keep records of all animals that we collect and all animals that we have on
display, and all mortalities, yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I, I know that Maui Ocean Center, you try to duplicate the
environment of the ocean as closely as possible so that the ocean life that you have on
display, you know, has an interaction with an environment that they have in the ocean.
How often do you need to or do you rotate the fishes that you have on display by
returning them to the ocean and bringing newer fishes in?
MR. GORMAN: The rotation of animals like you're describing is perhaps of two, two factors.
One is large animals, like for instance some sharks or stingrays. They do grow during the
display time. An example would be Hawaiian broad stingray, which has a remarkable
growth rate in captivity. Another one would be, for instance, the tiger shark. But the
other animals like, for instance, small juvenile fish; we do have, for instance, an exhibit
that displays juvenile wrasses and unfortunately juveniles don't stay too long juveniles.
So, there is something of a rotation there. Animals like, for instance, the Hawaiian
dascyllus, they start out in an exhibit displayed with little sand anemones, they then
migrate to another exhibit, which is dascyllus themselves, but because of the nature of
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these animals they then display breeding mating behaviors and aggressions and
sometimes they need to be removed from display after a year or a year and a half or so.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you for your, you know, insight in these
questions. And, and maybe finally, for me, is that we're talking about, you know, the
care and treatment of animals from the ocean environment.
MR. GORMAN: Uh-huh

.

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And when they go to aquariums, whether it's in a house or
at a hotel or at a bank, certainly most of the times they cannot duplicate the environment
of the ocean. Probably as maybe you can at Maui Ocean Center. So, what are the
thoughts that you have, or in the task force that you were a part of, that it's predictable
that small fishes that are kept in captivity in aquariums eventually die and have to be
replaced. So, what are your thoughts on the treatment of those fishes or animals from the
ocean environment when there is that predictability that they will die in captivity in such
small environments, such as an aquarium at home?
MR. GORMAN: I think the aquarium pet industry, if you want to call it, I think there's two
sides to it. I think there, there is a very professional side to it. I think there are people
who have dedicated a lot of resources to actually having aquariums that are similar to
something at Maui Ocean Center, meaning that they're actually live reef tanks with a lot
of life support. So, they have elaborate systems of filtration and, for instance, ozone, UV,
sterilization, et cetera, temperature control. But I think that is a small minority of the
industry itself
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MR. GORMAN: I think there is, which you're surmising to, there is a sense of capture and
replacement. In other words, I don't have those resources to maintain these animals long
term, therefore there has to be a short duration to the life of these animals, which is
particular, is problematically much shorter than what it would be if they were left on the
reef.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you very much, sir, for your information that you've
provided. Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Thank you.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Chairman?
CHAIR NISHIKI: Mr. Pontanilla?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Mr. Gorman, thank you for your testimony that was
submitted earlier. I'm kinda curious about the second page where, you know, the
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reference of HRS Section 711-1109, Cruelty to Animals in the Second Degree, which
exempts the following recognized activities, and it goes on to, you know, and you noted
accepted veterinarian practices and so forth. Just for my own curiosity, when we find an
animal that is sick in the ocean, then we transport to a different island for rehabilitation,
I'm assuming that we follow this particular section of HRS?
MR. GORMAN: You're...I'm sorry. You're assuming...
VICE-CHAIR PONTAN1LLA: Yeah. The question is, you know, when we have an animal that
is sick -MR. GORMAN: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: --that comes ashore -MR. GORMAN: Yes.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: --that we try to rehabilitate somewhere else -MR. GORMAN: Uh-huh.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: --then there are rules in regards to transporting that animal to a
different location, like say Honolulu or Big Island, for rehabilitation?
MR. GORMAN: I would imagine so, yes. That would be dictated by National Marine Fisheries,
NOAA, for example, on any removal. I, I think you're referring to a large animal like a
cetacean. And that would always be done under veterinarian supervision.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, this addition that you want is strictly for on island then?
MR. GORMAN: Correct.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Any other questions? Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chair. Good morning, Mr. Gorman.
MR. GORMAN: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And, and thank you for coming here. And you stated you
were an alternate on the task force.
MR. GORMAN: Yes.
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Your, your participation, I guess, involved how many
meetings? I know there were a total of five and I guess Ms. Zolezzi was at the majority
of them?
MR. GORMAN: That's correct. I went to one as the representative of Maui Ocean Center.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And the concern...
MR. GORMAN: I was at other meetings as an observer, basically.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh, okay. I see. And the concerns that you bring here to us
today, this was brought up to the task force and was it, I guess, voted on by the task force
to move forward with it or voted down?
MR. GORMAN: I think it was voted to move forward. Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. But as far as, you know, the task force didn't
recommend any of the amendments you're suggesting here to us today.
MR. GORMAN: I think they were additions from Council, for example. I think one of the
issues with this type of bill is the concerns that how do you exempt entities from such a
bill. The bill is to deal with animal cruelty, does that mean, for example, homeowners in
Pukalani are exempted. You know, it's, it's, there are legal issues. Our concern with, as
I stated, was that the public display, we felt that that was -COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Targeting Maui Ocean Center?
MR. GORMAN: --targeting, if you want. Yes. Targeting Maui Ocean Center particularly as we
are the only entity on island that actually exhibits for display and education.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Well, 1 appreciate your input. Thank you.
MR. GORMAN: No, thank you. I appreciate that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Any other questions?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Mr. Pontanilla?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. And, you know, I just heard Mr. Molina in regards
to the questioning of Mr. Gorman. I'm going to be asking Corporation Counsel in
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regards to how does this bill affect Maui Ocean Center, and if there is an exemption that
is exempting Maui Ocean Center from this particular bill here. So, thank you.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Mr. Zolezzi? Not Mr. Zolezzi...
MR. GORMAN: Mr. Gorman.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Gorman. Already...
MR. GORMAN: Mr. Nishiki -CHAIR NISHIKI: You know because Mr. Pontanilla brought it up...
MR. GORMAN: --am I wearing a dress today, sir? I'm kidding.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Okay. In the Section 3, and, and, and that's why, you know, you're asking
these, for these two languages to be changed. These two languages if they are changed
will pretty much exempt you?
MR. GORMAN: That's correct.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Okay.
MR. GORMAN: Yes.
CHAIR NISHIKI: From this bill.
MR. GORIVIAN Yes.
.

CHAIR NISHIKI: Okay. But we already have under Section 3, and, and that's why my
concern. It says, "Any person who collects aquatic life for sale for aquarium purposes
shall," and then the justification given from the subcommittee says that the justification
for this it says it shall exclude home users, hotel, and Maui Ocean Center, those not
engaged in selling and unintentionally impacted with earlier wording. Task force chose
to add "for sale" instead of listing those groups it doesn't apply, and then it says to see
HRS 711-1109. So...
MR. GORMAN: That, you're...
CHAIR NISHIKI: You're already given an exemption.
MR. GORMAN: No. You, you've got it in a nutshell right there. Just what you...
CHAIR NISHIKI: Well, why are you wanting to gut it even more?
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MR. GORMAN: No, what you said there is the nutshell of the issue. You're absolutely correct.
So, what happened in committee was that our request was the elimination of, "for public
exhibition or display". Our next request was for the insertion of the clause that we so
stated, and the compromise, if you want, of the, the choice was instead and listing the
concerns as you've so stated, home aquarium owners, Maui Ocean Center, hotels. It was
felt that inserting "for sale" would suffice. And the question is -CHAIR NISHIKI: Okay.
MR. GORMAN: --does that suffice or does it suffice in our view and naturally what, you know,
the issue is and why we're raising this right now.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Okay. Because, you know, I heard you earlier say. And let me ask you this
question just because I think that the, the question that Mr. Medeiros had about
indigenous fish and things of that sort, and then you gave your answer to, to that
question. I'm only one person, but in honesty, in whole honesty, does Maui Ocean
Center in any way transfer. :well, let me ask you this. Do you have any other aquariums
around the world?
MR. GORMAN: Yes. Our company, Coral World, actually has three other facilities.
CHAIR N1SHIKI: Okay.
MR. GORMAN: All three, all three other aquariums are similar in the sense that they focus on
the local environment. So, we do have one in the Red Sea in Israel, and that focuses in its
entirety on the Red Sea environment. We have one in Western Australia that focuses on
the Western Australia ecosystem. And then we have one in the Mediterranean in Spain.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Okay. So, let me ask you this. Do you send any of the fishes or life, ocean
life, to any of these aquariums? And, and this may be a concern that we have.
MR. GORMAN: Absolutely not.
CHAIR NISHIKI: You do not?
MR. GORMAN: Absolutely not.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Okay. Thank you very much.
MR. GORMAN: Guaranteed. Absolutely not.
CHAIR NISHIKI: That's very respectable.
MR. GORMAN: Thank you. I appreciate it. Thank you, gentlemen.
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CHAIR NISHIKI: Hold on.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Chair?
CHAIR NISHIKI: Mr. Sol, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: I just have another question. And I just wanted
to clarify. Member Medeiros asked earlier about the, the sale of fish, but do you, in your
collection, trade your fish with other aquariums?
MR. GORMAN: No.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA So, nothing that you have here in your aquarium
is exported or traded to other aquariums?
MR. GORMAN: No, nothing is imported or exported. There has been requests from other
facilities. You know, there are many facilities on the mainland that would like to perhaps
team up with us or have... we've never, you know, gone with that partly because also our
permitting. Our permitting is from the State and the State would require a special
addendum or permission to have such an act actually take place.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. I just wanted that clarification.
MR. GORMAN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Thank you.
MR. GORMAN: No problem.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Mr. Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. Mahalo, Mr. Chair. Mr. Gorman, just another
question in looking with the task force draft of the bill, and also, you know, your, your
written testimony and your request to include some of the language that you have
presented. I wanna ask, so do you have in your Maui Ocean Aquarium fresh water fish
or life?
MR. GORMAN: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: No? So, it's all salt water?
MR. GORMAN: Yeah. We, we never got involved in that partly because the Hawaii Nature
Center up at Lao Valley -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
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MR. GORMAN: --seemed to be doing a reasonable job in that side of things and so we never
ventured there. We felt that leave it alone, it's their, you know, it's their specialty, if you
want, and focus on what we're better at, which is actually marine life.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. So, a person of your knowledge and work, what do
you consider fishes that spawn in streams then return to the ocean, but before they return
to the ocean, lot of them are held by nature in estuaries or what Hawaiians called
muliwai, so that they can be protected from larger predators while they're growing to be
large enough to return to the ocean? Do you consider that fresh water or salt water
fishes?
MR. GORMAN: I consider it miraculous because I consider the fishes that are able to adapt to
those environments, I think it's, it's incredibly special if you understand the separation
between marine and fresh water fish. Inadvertently putting a fresh water fish in, in a salt
water environment would actually kill it and vice versa as far as the...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Of course those estuaries are kind of brackish.
MR. GORMAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: They, they are kind of both salt and fresh water mixture,
because the stream, you know, runs through an area and from time to time the ocean, you
know, goes into that area with waves and so forth. So, I just wanted to know, what
somebody of a scientific background as yourself would consider those fishes to be, salt
water or fresh water?
MR. GORMAN: They're actually, yeah, they, they're going through three different
environments. They're actually in a fresh water environment, and then they're in a
brackish water, and salt water on the return. Yeah. So, it's hard to define -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah.
MR. GORMAN: --what exactly they are. There's a phase in their life, which is true of other,
you know, migratory, particularly, fishes, from salmon to others
.

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS. And, and part of the question I, I bring up was, is because
in the draft copy by the task force, fresh water is removed from it. And I was wondering
what is the thinking behind that if you know in your limited interaction on the task force
meetings?
MR. GORMAN: I think you will need to ask -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
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MR. GORMAN: --the chair of the task force -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: All right.
MR. GORMAN: --that question.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And so what was the purpose in your recommendations to
add fresh water back to it?
MR. GORMAN: Well, because it leaves open an area of perhaps expertise and research that
could be shut down, if you want, by the bill itself. I think any efforts of propagation,
education display, and scientific research, what my feeling is, is that they're, they're not
quite sacrosanct, but at least they should be, you know, exempted from these measures
basically.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And finally, just clarify for me what is fresh water
non-game fish? What, what's non-game fish?
MR. GORMAN: Well, game fish are fish that we actively collect for, for food purposes. So,
you know, fresh water fish could be, would obviously be much smaller in nature if
they're non-game.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: And, and so because traditionally Hawaiian culture collects
those fishes sometimes for food -MR. GORMAN: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --how does that play with your non-game fish?
MR. GORMAN: I guess, you know, collection of fish for food then, game fish, I guess, has a
different definition.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Mr. Gorman.
MR. GORMAN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Mahalo, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Any other questions? The, the, the concern I have is we're, we're giving you
the exemption...and I'm gonna be repetitious again.
MR. GORMAN: Sure, no problem.
CHAIR NISHIKI: But then, you, you don't, you want to be allowed to, to do these lifesaving
treatments in the bill. What, what, what...
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MR. GORMAN: Lifesaving as in?
CHAIR NISHIKI: Yeah, like cutting the...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Bladder.
MR. GORMAN: The issue with, the issue with any fin clipping or piercing of a swim bladder,
there are two issues with any kind of trimming or fin clipping. The issue is that in
scientific research, a lot of scientists are working currently on genetics. They're working
on population studies. So, when you're looking at something like, for instance, a whitetip
reef shark and you're studying them on Oahu, they're looking at migratory trends in these
populations. So, these populations migrate out of the area of study. One way of doing
this is actually, is DNA. It's genetics. So sometimes, in fact frequently with scientists,
they're taking clippings of animals in other populations. So, the request is for clippings
from, say the fins from a whitetip reef shark, which we've had. We've had that request.
They actually did genetics with whitetip reef sharks at Maui Ocean Center because we
had a known entity. We had a father, mother, and child known to have occurred. It
wasn't in the wild where it's dubious, it was actually exact.
Population studies that were done on reef fish, for example, with the yellow tang, a lot of
times again with genetics they take clippings. They take a paper punch clipping from the
fin and use that for DNA. They're trying to ascertain is there a complete genetic mark
with the population, say on Maui with the population on the Big Island. And the only
way to do that, because the yellow tang is a yellow tang. It looks like a yellow tang. The
yellow tangs on Maui look like the yellow tangs on the Big Island, how do you
differentiate or know? The only way is by genetics, is by DNA study. To do that, you
need to clip. You need to take something from the animal.
So, some of these measures, which I can understand why if we're all thinking wait a
minute, these cruel guys are cutting off these fins all over the place because they want to
ship fish, that is abhorrent. It's not something that should be allowed. But if you leave a
clause like that and there's no reference to the scientific, then perhaps you're, you know,
harming something that is positive.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Fine.
MR. GORMAN: Yeah.
CHAIR NISHIKI: But...and, and, and, and, and I guess we, we'll make that determination
whether we wanna allow that to, to happen here that you're participating in.
MR. GORMAN: Yeah.
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CHAIR NISHIKI: But in no way is it going to hinder the operation of the Ocean Center and
what you have displayed in your aquarium?
MR. GORMAN: We are not currently clipping or finning or anything but we could have a
request from a scientist asking for a clip from a hammerhead shark or something like that
for the scientific studies that they're doing with populations.
CHAIR NISHIKI: And, and you could, you could get that shark any other place but I believe
that -MR. GORMAN: Yeah, but if I...
CHAIR NISHIKI: --in Maui we decide we may not.
MR. GORMAN: If we have an open clause, then that -COUNCILMEMBER K AHO' OHALAHALA: Allows them the use.
MR. GORMAN: --negates me from participating in something that has scientific value.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Okay. Fine. You know, I, I, I think that, well, you know... excuse me for
this exchange, Members. You know, personally myself, now we're really stretching what
I think people generally see you people are doing. Is this something that you, you talk
about when people visit your aquarium that you do?
MR. GORMAN: Meaning...I'm sorry?
CHAIR NISHIKI: What you just discussed?
MR. GORMAN: Like the clipping of fins or...
CHAIR NISHIKI: Yeah. Yeah.
MR. GORMAN: We would be happy to. We do when we've had such things go on. Like for
instance, as I told you, there was a study with the yellow tangs. We actually took some
clippings from our yellow tangs to participate with that study, and it was something that
yeah, we were, if you want, proud of and to participate in because it was for the purpose
of determining the spread of different populations of yellow tangs within the Hawaiian
Islands, so. We also worked with Hawaiian Institute of Marine Biology with
hammerhead sharks to take clippings because again, the study area was in Kaneohe Bay
on Oahu, but they felt that they wanted to investigate if other populations of hammerhead
sharks, which there aren't that many on, in the islands, is there a direct match genetically
with the animals in Kaneohe Bay.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Yeah. Anyway, yeah. That, that goes to another subject matter of...
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MR. GORMAN. Yeah.
CHAIR NISHIKI. If I, if I were to ask that specific fish if it's alright for me to do it to them, I
don't know what their answer would be. But I think...
MR. GORMAN: No. No, I understand. I understand where you're coming from.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Yeah.
MR. GORMAN: It's, it's just that, you know, do we say we can't do any of these studies within
the Hawaiian Islands? I think that's where the scientific community would be concerned
about the words in the bill itself. You're, you're basically have the intent, if you want, of
preventing animal cruelty and, if you want, the rape of the reefs as far as the taking of
fish from the reefs, but in doing that you perhaps are inadvertently negating or
hamstringing, if you want, scientific research that's going on at the same time.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Thank you.
MR. GORMAN: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Chair, one, one more.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Mr. Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Yeah. One more question. You know we're sort
of leading into a whole other area of discussion.
MR. GORMAN: Yeah. No, I'm sorry about that.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: But I, I think I asked you earlier about whether
or not you had exchanges of, of, of fish from one aquarium to another and you said no.
MR. GORMAN: Uh-huh. Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA But in fact, if this ability to allow for finning and
taking of parts, then you would be sending samples then to someone who would be
making a request then?
MR. GORMAN: A hole punch, yes, in a...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: So, while you're not physically sending fish
from one aquarium to another, you would be able to send samples of these fish for
genetic testing, perhaps, or experimentation or... so, you're not physically sending the
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animal but you were taking parts of the animal and then that's what you're saying that
would be problematic if you.
MR. GORMAN. Well, the animal still exists in our display and the hole punch -COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Yeah, but -MR. GORMAN. --would recover over a short period.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --we're now talking about genes, okay.
MR. GORMAN. Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA Now, you're sending the animals' genes to be
tested and then to be identified for other purposes. And do you allow then, in these kinds
of opportunities, for genes themselves to be identified or even looked for as for other
purposes, you know?
MR. GORMAN: No.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: You know, the study of genetics is, is our times
now.
MR. GORMAN. Yeah. No, it, it is. For example, take the eagle ray. We have, we have an
eagle ray on display. But there's a question of is there a distinction between the Atlantic
eagle ray and the Pacific eagle ray? Are they the same, are they actually the same genus?
Are they actually the same species?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. One, one is identification.
MR. GORMAN: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: The other is looking at genes for its potential use
as other, other products, you know. And I'm sensing....
MR. GORMAN: No, I think it's more. „I think the, the...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Well, animal genes have potential -MR. GORMAN: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: --as well as plant genes have potential.
MR. GORMAN: Yeah I, I'm sure. But I, I don't think that is ever...
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COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, I just wanna ask that question up front -MR. GORMAN: Sure.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --so I understand what -MR. GORMAN: Yeah. No.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --is being perhaps looked at in terms of genetics.
MR. GORMAN: It's being looked at more for, for the, like I said, the population studies.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OFIALAHALA: Okay. Yeah.
MR. GORMAN: Is there somehow...for instance, the, the honu. Recently they've come up with
perhaps the Hawaiian honu, the green sea turtle perhaps that actually is a subspecies, it's
not exactly the same as the honu throughout the...
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay, Mr. Gorman, you're just opening up a
whole other -MR. GORMAN: Yeah, I'm sorry about that.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --avenue of, of, of questions here.
MR. GORMAN: Yeah. No.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Remember, your purpose for the, the Center was
to have it for display and for education -MR. GORMAN: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --for your viewers. But now we're talking about
a whole other area -MR. GORMAN: Uh-huh.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: --of, of work and research that requires sampling
of these aquatic animals for the purpose of now further understanding their relationship to
other aquatic species in other parts of the world now. So, you know, I want to understand
that when we're looking and you're saying we only keep the animals here, this is for the
people to come and look at, but then now you open a whole other area of concern that for
me now raises other issues about what then is the aquarium there for other than the
display?
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MR. GORMAN: I, I, I'm sorry that I opened up an area of concern for you. It's not something
that, you know, we've...like I said, it's not something that's happened with any
frequency. We've had the odd request. But I, I would imagine that here within the
Hawaiian Islands there are ongoing studies with different species, and all I'm trying to
say is sometimes if we have a bill and the bill's intent is to stop this animal cruelty issue,
perhaps we're also, like I said, we're, we're -COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Stopping.
MR. GORMAN: --not allowing any kind of scientific research then within the Hawaiian Islands.
It's not necessarily Maui Ocean Center's doing that. I'm just pointing out that this is, you
know, what we're doing perhaps inadvertently. We're saying, well, we can't do any
research here in this island because you can't any way tamper or interfere with, with an
animal.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you for your comments.
MR. GORMAN: Okay.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Any other questions? Seeing none, thank you.
MR. GORMAN: Thank you.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Robert Wintner, representing Snorkel Bob's, followed by Oriana Kalama.
MR. WINTNER: Aloha, Council. And thank you again for addressing the reef fish of Maui
County. I'm Robert Wintner speaking here today on behalf of Snorkel Bob's and for the
fish who have done so much for my company, for Hawaii, and for me. I'm in support of
PS-25 relating to aquatic life animal control.
We addressed two issues here today. The first issue is reef health and recovery. All the
science agrees reefs around the world are diminishing, and Hawaii is no exception. In
these Hawaiian Islands, reefs have no voice and no management except for those
protections put in place by government. The Maui County Council of 2010 has
demonstrated greater care and compassion for Maui County reefs than any government,
department, division, or agency since statehood in 1959. Here's another golden
opportunity.
The second issue we face here today is wildlife trafficking for the pet trade. No other
wildlife species in the world today is more heavily taken for the pet trade than our reef
fish. No other place has a cultural heritage so deeply embedded in natural order yet is so
scavenged by contemporary greed. Anybody opposing this bill is making it a ban for
convenience at the expense of Maui County reefs and Maui County reef fish. Those of us
appearing before you again today are merely the spokespersons for a vast majority of
- 25 -

PUBLIC SERVICES COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui
November 17, 2010

Maui residents from all cultures. We're part of a reef community and we are sick and
tired of reef exploitation in the name of profit with nothing for reef recovery.
I ask that you dismiss the tactics of fear and buzz phrases. Phrases like unintended
consequences. We heard the same fearful refrain prior to passage of the permit
ordinance, and the only unintended consequence was that the biggest aquarium collector
and the biggest dealer on Maui moved to Kona where unlimited extraction is still a way
of life at least for the short term. We've heard that fizzing, or as John Gorman pointed
out, pinning or puncturing the air bladder is humane, but it's not. It's only convenient, a
last ditch effort to save a dying fish. We've heard that finning, or cutting dorsal fins, is
like cutting fingernails that can be a medical treatment. Fish don't have fingernails and
finning is a means by which the aquarium trade boosts revenue.
But you know these things and more. I want to say mahalo Maui County Council of
2010 for who you are and what you've done. I'm proud of you. I'm proud that you're a
dynamic part of this reef community willing to make changes in order to protect what we
hold dear. Thank you for doing the right thing.
That ends my prepared comments. I would like to add on hearing the testimony. I wanna
thank you again for asking Mr. Gorman some very tough questions, but something's
lingering here and I wanna review what happened. We had a task force and it did a very
thorough job, and at the end of that task force, even though, as Mr. Gorman pointed out,
the majority may have carried the day, Maui Ocean Center signed off. And you would
think if they were so disposed to disagree they would not have signed off but they did.
Now, in short order, after signing off, a lobbying firm, it's actually a legal firm that's
known for lobbying at the capital, was retained to come and lobby you all, you all got the
letters, you all got the visits, saying that they were problems and we needed this language
changed.
I'm here to tell you, you know, I just got done with a promotional tour on the mainland,
and I'm getting significant kickback from public aquaria around the country. To name
two, the Georgia Aquarium and the New England Aquarium. And they have said things
online in public chat rooms, we must all stand together against what's happening here in
Maui. We must work together to stop this. And I am suggesting here that in. .the
questions you've all asked were repressing and poignant. But here's the bottom line,
Maui Ocean Center was exempted by specific language drafted by the task force, and
now they wanna change it again. And what they wanna change it again to would exempt
any other public aquarium coming to Hawaii to collect, and that's the bottom line, okay.
Maui Ocean Center is already exempted thoroughly. The language they wanna change to
would exempt all other public aquarium collection in Maui County waters, and even
though many of them may choose to collect in other counties, they're afraid of this. They
see something growing on Maui, okay. And we're here to do the right thing. It's not
always easy and it's not always convenient, and I thank you again.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Thank you. Any questions? Jo Anne?
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, Bob, in, in the bill that I have...I have one that was
handed to me by Staff, which is the updated version and then also I have the one in our
binder, and Chair Nishiki read specifically for the exemption, but I don't see Maui Ocean
Center mentioned anywhere in the bill that I have in front of me. So, could you point me
to where that is? Was that in the previous bill we passed?
MR. WINTNER: No, my understanding is that Maui Ocean Center is specifically exempted in
the language that the task force put together.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Well, I'm just gonna ask the Chair then because he read from
something that does not appear in any of the documentation that I have. So, I, at some
point, I'd like a bill or a clarification...
CHAIR NISHIKI: No, we'll put it up right now. Staff?
MR. KANESHINA: Thank you, Chair. In the task force report that was submitted to the
Committee on September 9, 2009, if you turn to Page 3 of that report, there's a brief
discussion of the, the proposed language change. And on the next page there's a
justification for that change. The new language, the proposed language reads, "Any
person who collects aquatic life Ibr sale for aquarium purposes shall," and their
justification would be it excludes home users, hotels, and the Maui Ocean Center, those
not engaged in selling basically aquatic life to the pet trade.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So that's in the blue and MOC means Maui Ocean
Center.
MR. KANESHINA: Yeah.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So, somewhere can we put that in the definition, you
know, from MOC or is it already in there in the definition? Because...
MR. KANESHINA: It, it's not in the definition. The key is, is that it's, the language says "for
sale" and Maui Ocean Center said that they do not sell what they collect.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. But you're saying that it specifically states Maui
Ocean Center.
MR. KANESHINA: No. The justification sheet says Maui Ocean Center; however, the
proposed ordinance does not.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay, that 's what I needed to know 'cause that doesn't...you
know, I understand the questions end on both sides. So, I just need that clarified
somewhere. Thank you.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Yeah. You're welcome. Any questions?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair? What Staff just referenced... I, I don't see. I can't
find it in our binders. It's September of 2009?
MR. KANESHINA: September 9, 2009. It was transmitted from Member Molina.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Mr. Chair?
CHAIR NISHIKI: Okay. I don't wanna keep Mr. Wintner up. Is there any questions?
MR. WINTNER It's okay. No rush.
-

COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Well, yes.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Mr. Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA. Then I, I just wanted to get some comment then
on the testimony that was submitted by the Maui Ocean Center where they're asking for
the inclusion of the definition of aquarium purposes. Are you, do you have a copy of
this?
MR. WINTNER: Yes, I do. I think. No, I don't.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. I just wanted to know, you said that this
was brought up in discussion with your, your working group and...
MR. WINTNER: I, I was not on the task force.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay.
MR. WINTNER: But I was, I kept apace of their proceedings.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Then what is your comment on the
inclusion of this definition for aquarium purposes, which they are asking to be added to
what's already before us in the draft?
MR. WINTNER: I think it's the result of a very thorough process that everybody participated
in--ten different representatives from our community. And 1 think that the discussion was
open, frank, and honest, and then it was signed off by all parties. That was the procedure
that everybody agreed to. I think that, I don't wanna speculate too deeply, but I think this
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whole idea of going into the scientific realm might be a little bit of thin ice because
most...well, the Maui Ocean Center is a for-profit company just like my own and so are
most public aquaria on the mainland, and I think their being. ..I think there's heavy
pressure being brought to bear here in the name of science. It's not science. It's mostly
for profit.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Any other questions? Seeing none, thank you.
MR. WINTNER: Thank you.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Mr. Molina, do you have a question?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Well, actually it was more just for clarification for
Mr. Medeiros' request.
CHAIR NISHIKI. Thank you, Bob.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah.
CHAIR NISHIKI: You want, you have a question for Bob?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh, no, no. No question for Mr. -CHAIR NISHIKI: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --Wintner. Yeah.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA. Yeah. No, you know, just to follow up. It was the, what you
read off was the task force recommendations and in the current version of the bill, the
exclusion of MOC is not in there, and it would be up to the Committee if they wanted to
move this out of Committee and you could, you know, amend the current bill with the
task force recommendation amendment. So, 1 just wanted to add that clarification for
procedure's sake.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Thank you. Oriana Kalama, representing Ocean Defender, followed by Anita
Wintner.
MS. KALAMA: Aloha, everyone. I wanna thank you for the opportunity to let me speak again.
I'm here on behalf of my organization. It's called Ocean Defender Hawaii. I have
23,000 followers on Facebook, and I'm also here on behalf of my ohana, the Kalama
-
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ohana, my children, and my grandchildren who are not here. But I wanna speak in behalf
of them too.
I'm here in behalf of the tropical reef fish, the sponge eaters, the parasite eaters, the coral
tissue eaters, the algae eaters, and all of the fish that are being victim of this trade. I am
here in behalf of the reefs as well, because without the team of fish to keep the reef clean
and healthy, there will be no reef.
In the past, I've talked about our culture, the Polynesian culture and how we're supposed
to be the guardians of the land, how we're all together, how we're all intertwined. I've
learned here about Liliuokalani and the Kumulipo. It was an eye opener for me to know
that every animal in the mountain, every vine, every tree is connected to animal, grass,
algae in the ocean. That was a blessing for me.
So, we are the guardians of the land and we should be pono with it. And I think we've
forgotten that. We live in a fast era and a modern world. We're busy. We have work.
We have kids. We have school. We have no time, sometimes no time to even go in the
ocean and enjoy it. Then what we do, we decide to bring the ocean to our home, to us.
This mentality is leaving our oceans of the world looking like a desert.
I was in Tonga and Fiji for the past months and that's why I missed the, the, the meetings
here. And what I saw there was another eye opening. It was kind of like seeing the
future of Hawaii if we don't do something right now. What did I see? I saw algae
overgrowth, dead coral, broken coral, no fish. I mean, I was expecting to go to Tonga
and see more variety than I seen in Hawaii, come to realize I have here more together
than there. But there, they're supposed to have more tropical fish than in Hawaii. But
right now, the shallow reefs of Tonga and Fiji, I saw nothing but black and white striped
fish, they were neon blue with yellow and barely anything. They're taking the sea
cucumbers for sale. I mean, 1 don't wanna go on, on what I saw, but it was disturbing.
Oh, no turtles, barely any turtles there. I was there for a month. I was in the ocean all the
time. 1 never seen a turtle there. I saw two turtles in a month. Then I'm go to the market
and I see turtle shells for sale... right.
So, we need to tighten the belt. Oh, because there's no law there. That's what was
happening. There is no law. Therefore, I feel that we need to tighten the belt here and
prevent the depletion of our reefs by the coral/fish trade.
In Fiji's main island, the reef was the same plus hundreds of Chinese and Japanese long
liners, literally tons of yellow fin tuna loaded into their containers. I saw this just by
sitting in one hour at the dock. Tons of it. It was disturbing. Also, I heard about the
shark boats that now decided to fin the sharks there. Before they were bringing just the
sharks fins. Disturbing.
So anyways, our ocean is suffering. Our ocean is in crisis and we must protect what's
ours. The fish are ours. These are a part of our ohana for us to enjoy, for our children
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and our grandchildren, and our tourists too, okay. So, it broke my heart to see our sister
islands being depleted and I don't want this to happen to us. And I see it happening and I
don't like it. We can't forget that as islanders our natural resources is all we have. We
cannot give it away so that a few individuals can make a few bucks at the expenses of all
of us.
My fight for the fish is global. This problem is not exclusive of Hawaii. This problem
needs to be fixed. So, I wanna talk a little bit about what I do every day in my
organization. So, I wake up in the morning and I think about a beautiful fish that I want
people to, to learn about, 'cause what I do is all educational and I do it for free. So, every
day I post on a fish. For example, yesterday I posted on the masked butterfly fish. It
comes from Egypt and Oman, right. And when I was looking for the fish, all I could find
was information on where to buy it and how to care for it. And you name the fish--a
cardinal fish, fish, a coris wrasse--any fish you think of, you go online you Google that
fish and it's gonna pop up 25 things and 20 of them is where to buy 'em and how to care
for 'em. That makes my blood boil. It is out of control.
So... (sighs)... destroying our reefs. Anyways, this my, my last thing is an analogy. A
friend of mine was talking about this problem to a friend. The friend says I agree with
you but my nephew who had cancer and was at Liliuokalani Hospital was really sick but
the only thing that made him happy was to go into the hallway and look at the fish tank at
the humuhumu. And I said well, you know, this is about our fight too. This humuhumu
is for our kids, for our sick kids, sick kids to see it, not for them to be transferred all over
the world so then we have sick kids that want to see beautiful fish, there's no more.
These fish are for all healthy kids and for our sick kids and for us, for nobody else. If
they wanna see fish from Hawaii, come to Hawaii, get in the ocean and get wet, it's
wonderful there. Thank you.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Thank you, Oriana. Any questions? Seeing none, Anita Wintner, followed
by Jeannine Souki.
MS. WINTNER: Aloha. Anita Wintner. And I'm here in support of PS-25 with the task force
recommendations. Until we can ban aquarium fish collecting completely, I'm very happy
to see that we're going to try to make attempts to have humane treatment of the reef fish
caught. So, you know, I've read, I've just had a chance to glance over what the task force
recommendations are and the copy that I have on Page 4 at the top does exclude home
users, hotels, and Maui Ocean Center. And of course it also excludes Maui Ocean Center
because of the "for sale" part, which Wayne Nishiki has already brought up several times.
And also there's a part in here that's for the fresh water, non-game fish, specifically says
koi ponds and fresh water aquariums.
One thing that if, if Maui Ocean Center is exempt from this bill, then it shouldn't be a
problem, but they do have in here about accepted veterinarian practices for fin, trimming
the fins, for puncturing the swim bladder. You know, I can see that if necessary, you
know, to, to maybe include that. And as far as finning for tissue samples, you mentioned
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fin cutting. If you're taking a paper punch, I wouldn't think that that would be fin
cutting. So, that possibly wouldn't be an issue. But other than that, I'm very happy
about this bill and I, I hope that it is passed. And, you know, I do hope that Maui Ocean
Center in every other way applies humane methods to their operation and is, should be an
example for everyone here as they are the biggest fish collector in the County of Maui.
Thank you.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Thank you. Any questions? Seeing none, thank you, Anita. Jeannine Souki
representing Jack Randall, Senior...I don't know that position, Ichthyologist, for the
Bishop Museum.
MS. SOUK1: Yes. Actually, my name is Jeannine Souki and I'm here to read Jack Randall' s
testimony. He's not able to join us today, so I'll just read it verbatim.
My name is Jack Randall. I was the Ichthyologist...sorry, I can't pronounce it too...with
the Bishop Museum from 1967 to 2009 and also served on the graduate faculty in
zoology in the University of Hawaii. I have 765 scientific publications, including 11
guidebooks on fishes. I'm opposed to the proposed ordinance because it will restrict
scientific research such as marking and tagging of fishes.
Aquarium fish collectors make every effort to keep fishes they catch alive and in good
health. If a fish is caught in more than about 50 feet and brought to the surface quickly,
the swim bladder will expand and could cause the death of the fish. The hypodermic
needle to the swim bladder releases the gas and is about the equivalent of a human getting
a flu shot. It actually alleviates pain in the fish that the fish would experience if the gas
were not released.
A temperature fluctuation of two degrees is no problem for a fish. Fishes living in tide
pools experience far greater temperature fluctuation than this. They are also able to be
several minutes in air without harm. I've tagged hundreds of fishes, which require their
being exposed to the air for measurement and tag insertion. I have also used fin clipping
to mark fish for the short term. The fins are soon regenerated.
It is necessary to stop feeding for 12 hours before shipping a fish. If not, it will go, it will
foul the water in which it is shipped. Depending on the species, most fish often go
without feeding for more than 12 hours.
And it's signed sincerely, John E. Randall, PhD., Senior Ichthyologist Emeritus of the
Bishop Museum.
CHAIR NISH1KI: Thank you.
MS. SOUKI: Thank you.
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CHAIR NISHIKI: Members, you have the written testimony also in front of you. Any questions
for Jeannine? Seeing none...
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Oh, Chair?
CHAIR NISHIKI: Oh, excuse me. Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chairman. Good, good morning,
Ms. Souki.
MS. SOUKI: Good morning.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: And can you tell us again your title again?
MS. SOUKI: I am with Watanabe Ing and I am a policy advisor.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I see. Okay. And, you know, looking at Mr. Randall's
testimony as the ichthyologist with the Bishop Museum. From what you know, in, in this
process of tagging fish and so forth, realistically fish do die though, right? There are
deaths?
MS. SOUKI: Yes. There are deaths. There's, like everything, there's a life cycle.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Yeah. Because I was disappointed to see that. I know
Mr. Randall told us about how many fish he's tagged and so forth, but he didn't mention
in here the amount of deaths caused by this in the name of science, if you will. So, I just
wanted to make that comment.
MS. SOUKI: Sure. I can bring that back to you -COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Sure.
MS. SOUKI: --if you like?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Thank you. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Any other questions? Seeing none, thank you. Last testifier, unless there
was someone out there that hasn't signed up, is Ali Young. She is the representative of
Charlie Villalon.
MS. YOUNG: Charles Villalon. Okay. Aloha. I'm Ali and I'm here as a representative for
Charles Villalon. I'm gonna read his letter that he wrote right, right from the page.
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My name is Charles Villalon of the Kekuma and the Kaliakau [sic] Ohana, which existed
during the unification of Hawaii by Kamehameha the Great, and I am in support of Bill
PS-25 Relating to the Aquatic Life Animal Control.
Once again, we find the deceptive ransacking of Hawaiian assets. The aquatic life that
we fight for today is uniquely Hawaiian. The culture is again faced with the corporate,
with a corporate few who hana ino or knowingly take advantage for commercial
purposes. We Hawaiians are sharing and giving but we have lost enough to those who
wish to take instead of duplicate, to hoard instead of share. These corporates [sic] know
they cannot duplicate the beauty they find in our ocean without, and in our ocean life
without untold amounts of financing, so the result is to take under the auspice of
commerce and science. Shame on you, Maui Ocean Center. You should be ambassadors
of example not excuse and greed. You come into our islands offering much but we see
you come and take. By words of my kupuna hoka, watch your business slump for giving
way to greed. Watch out, corporations. Watch all greedy corporations in the next few
months. Fortify your practice in life. Be pono and you will survive the cleansing that is
upon all of us in the islands. I am a native Hawaiian with six traceable generations from
Maui island. I have extensive ocean enforcement background serving with the U.S.
Coast Guard during the Vietnam era, with the Maui Police Department here on Maui for
six years. I have served 14 years as a DLNR officer of the Division of Conservation
Resource Enforcement and I am presently, presently the Maui Coastal Zone Inspector for
North Shore Maui for the last 15 years.
That was Charles Villalon.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Any questions? Do you have something you wanna say?
MS. YOUNG: I do.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Go ahead.
MS. YOLTNG. On behalf of myself, of me.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Go ahead.
MS. YOUNG: 1 just have some random things. The other day I went surfing down at "Dumps"
and the water was beautiful and I passed this big plaque right in front of... "Dumps" is in
Ahihi Marine Reserve. And I passed a big plaque and it was describing one of the
endemic fishes here in Hawaii, the little damsel, the little black damsel. And it went on
and on and it was a big plaque for everyone to read about this precious little damselfish.
It's found nowhere else in the world. And this is among many endemic fishes that live
here. And, and, and I thought wmv, this is the same fish that I see in pet shops, that sits at
the airport in coolers on crates ready for shipment. Sometimes they get bumped. And I
heard from a girl that works there, when they get bumped, a lot of these fish are wasted.
They die. You know, so they sit in coolers and crates, and I'm reading this plaque and
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I'm thinking this to myself that these fish are being exported to the mainland to sit in
aquariums. Your aquarium is in the ocean not in a tank.
And like Oriana said about, you know, having our fish in hospitals for our kids, our
people, our sick people in hospitals, not being shipped to townhomes, to sit in pet stores
and for display of whatever, you know. This, these are our fish. These are endemic...a
lot of them are endemic fishes. They belong here in Hawaii. From the mountain to the
ocean and Mr. Ocean Center doesn't know about muliwais. He says it's a miracle. No,
it's part of life from, from when they're keiki all the way down to the reef cleaners,
which is targeted by these, these aquarium collectors, to the game fish, which you think
are only for food. No, they're all related. They all play a role, from the reef cleaners to
the game fish, from the muliwais to the deep. It all plays a big role and it's all been
interrupted and it's looking pretty grim lately. I mean it's been, it's been looking sad out
there.
I work on a boat. 1 get in the water with tourists. And again, I've mentioned this before,
it's really sad when me and all the little tourists snorkel up and we see a sick turtle with a
big tumor on its head. You know, that's a sign our reefs are sick. I've said this before in
the testimony. You know, you guys, whatever you can do since we're not banning 'em
here, implement your laws and really, really tighten down on them because these are our
reefs. This is Hawaii, and these should be protected. It should be beautiful here. You
don't want it to look like Tonga. Oriana said dead. You know, and a lot of... you read on
Trip Advisor, a lot of people say oh, I thought there would be more fish. You know, the
companies sell more fish. They sell beautiful, plentiful reefs. When they get there, some
of the reefs are dead. Some of the reefs are really depleted. Turtles are sick out there and
that's what people are seeing. That's what your tourists are seeing.
And Charles Villalon said it right. We exploit and exploit our resources until they're
gone. Once again, deceptive ransacking of Hawaiian assets. And that's how I feel. I
mean, you know, that's how a lot of people feel. I speak for Hawaiians. And I guarantee
you a lot of Hawaiians, you bring this to them, they're just gonna shake their head and
they will be totally for this bill if not a complete ban on aquarium collecting. Okay.
That's me. That's it.
CHAIR NISHIKI: You got questions from that lady from your area, Mr. -COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . fLaughter). . .

MS. YOUNG: Yeah. Sorry.
CHAIR NISHIKI: --Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Mr. Chairman. Well, I, I, I'm proud to say
she's my cousin.
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COUNCIL MEMBERS . (Laughter)
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: She's the daughter of Skippy Young, who we see here a lot
and they're well spoken in things that they are very passionate about as she has been. But
I wanted to say, Ali, that I did send a legislative measure to the State Legislature through
our HSAC, which is Hawaii Association of Counties, to totally ban or at least come up
some, with some very strict regulations about the taking of animals from our ocean
environment. Right now, the State has very little regulation on it. There's no restrictions
on what people can take, how much they can take. So, the State has the authority to
create legislation Statewide. And so, through our State organization of counties, I'm, I
submitted that and it'll go to the 2011 Legislature for consideration. So, this Council is
working to see how we can have the State participate in what we're trying to do.
MS. YOUNG: I know. I know you guys are.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah.
MS. YOUNG: You guys are all wonderful. You guys are really wonderful.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Thank you, Ali.
MS. YOUNG: I voted for a lot of you guys.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . . (Laughter).
. END OF PUBLIC TESTIMONY . .
CHAIR NISHIKI: Any other questions? Seeing none, Members, in the 15 minutes during the
recess, take time out to, to look at the ordinance and also the changes recommended by
the task force and that way we'll come back and be ready to deal with the changes that
are being requested.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA. Chair, a quick question.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Mr. Kaho' ohalahala?
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO'OHALAHALA: When you're asking us to take a look on the
draft bill that you have passed out, then am I to assume that as you made earlier
statements at the beginning of this meeting that the parentheses area, are they what is
reflected in the report?
CHAIR NISHIKI: Yeah. Those are -COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' ORAL AHALA: Okay.
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CHAIR NISHIKI: --the, the changes that are being recommended by the task force.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. So, this covers all of that?
CHAIR NISHIKI: Yeah. And, and anything else is the bill that was passed out of Committee
the last time and referred back.
COUNCILMEMBER KAHO' OHALAHALA: Okay. Thank you.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Okay. And then, of course, the justification is in the letter from the task force
that was sent to us by Vice-Chair Molina, and Mr. Molina, we thank you so much.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Any other questions prior to going into recess? Seeing none, meeting is in
recess 'til 10:50 a.m. . . .(gavel). . .
RECESS:

10:35 a.m.

RECONVENE: 10:52 a.m.
CHAIR NISHIKI . . .(gavel). . . Meeting please reconvene. Members, if there are no
objections, the Chair would like to close public testimony.
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
ITEM NO. 25: AQUATIC LIFE ANIMAL CONTROL (C.C. No. 09-337)
CHAIR NISHIKI: Public testimony is closed. In front of you, Renee Umberger, member of the
task force in case there are any questions. In front of you, we've got County
Communication No. 09-337. That was from Vice-Chair Molina of the Council, which is
a proposed bill for an ordinance amending Chapter 6.04, Maui County Code, pertaining

to animal control. The purpose of this bill is to add additional definitions to the existing
animal control ordinance and to expand the chapter to include animal cruelty protection
for certain aquatic life.
And the second document you have is the Public Service Committee Report 10-65, which
was recommitted. That was recommending passage of first reading of a bill aquatic
animal control. The bill was entitled "A BILL FOR AN ORDINANCE AMENDING
CHAPTER 6.04, MAUI COUNTY CODE, PERTAINING TO ANIMAL CONTROL".
The purpose of this bill was to set a minimal guideline for the humane treatment of
aquatic life.
And the last is the Committee is also in receipt of a letter from the task force that was
established to discuss how improvements could be made to the proposed bill to satisfy all
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parties involved. For your convenience, I have incorporated these recommendations into
the unsigned draft bill that I think Staff has handed out or will be handing out to you.
Keep in mind that the most, the most recent proposed bill that is attached to Committee
Report 10-65 was used as the starting point. The task force's recommendations are in
parentheses.
Okay. Any questions in regards to what you have in front of you? Mr. Pontanilla?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Just a fast question for Corporation Counsel. I'm
looking at the draft copy for review and earlier we had testimony by Maui Ocean Center
regarding the exclusion of Maui Ocean Center in this proposal. Does this proposal
exclude Maui Ocean Center?
MR. UEOKA: This proposed bill, or the language, does not specifically exempt the Maui Ocean
Center from the regulations, I guess, of this bill. However, the Committee's idea... or the
task force's thought was that by talking about it only goes after people selling it, then
therefore, the Maui Ocean Center is excluded because they do not engage in the sale of
the aquatic life.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: And the other question that I have here, if we were to move as
proposed by Maui Ocean Center or for public exhibition or display, would that protect
Maui Ocean Center from being targeted or, or, or being fined, or, or whatever, in this
particular proposal? It's Section 2, aquarium purposes as you read means to hold salt
water fish, fresh water non-game fish, or other aquatic life alive in a state of captivity as
pets and, or for public exhibition or display. So, if we were to remove "or for public
exhibition or display", by removing that language, will it protect Maui Ocean Center?
MR. UEOKA: Well, I'm not sure. Depending on...I don't know their, their operation. You
know, I don't know exactly what they do and on what level. They may not be... fall
under the main section, which is, you know, no, any person who collects aquatic life, I
believe their idea is for sale for aquarium purposes, which seems almost redundant
because it, aquarium purposes talks about for sale. Whether or not they would fall under
that category, that would be a determination to be made probably, I guess that the initial
step would be by the enforcement individual, the individual enforcing this code, and then
the next argument would be made to a judge because it is almost a criminal activity.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: So, should we, in this case here, name the entity to be excluded?
MR. UEOKA: That would be an option for you folks to specifically exempt the Maui Ocean
Center from this...
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: The penalty area?
MR. UEOKA: Yeah, from this language.
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VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Jo Anne?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, and, and along the same lines, Mr. Ueoka, one of the
things, I guess as legislators, we've always been cautioned against is specifically naming
businesses or specific entities because of constitutional issues that have arisen or other, I
guess, legislative practices, you know, either way. Is there some way that we could put a
grandfathering clause then that any, anyone... you know, 'cause I know we've done that
in the past where we've said that anyone currently doing business, you know, in the
County, that is doing this with regard to this specific section, you know, would not be
subject to any of the, I guess, regulatory aspects of this bill? I, you know, and, and the
reason I'm saying this, Mr. Ueoka, is because some of the issues that have been raised
with regard to, you know, some of the activities that Maui Ocean Center does, which may
be construed in a different light from, you know, if you do a literal read, it just may be
problematic. And then the other thing that I'm looking at is if Maui Ocean Center is
specifically named, my concern is for any kind of a challenge in the future with regard to
opening the door and creating a loophole for our Cetacean Exhibition Bill. That is my
biggest concern right now. So, I, I'd rather not have somebody challenge that in a court
setting and then open up the can of worms by challenging other aspects of what they do
and then therefore challenging the Cetacean Exhibition Bill.
MR. UEOKA: I believe Maui Ocean Center...I'm not sure if they requested in their letter a
specific exemption from the bill for them. I believe they did ask for a language similar to
the Cruelty to Animals in the Second Degree, Hawaii Revised Statute, 711-1109 where,
you know, these penalties shall not apply to activities carried on for scientific research
governed by standards or accepted operational and medicinal practices and accepted
veterinary practices. So, we could add in an exemption as they requested. That would be
a more broad stroke exemption, you know, for anyone engaging in those types of things.
So, you'd get away from your specifically naming a business, but I'm not sure if that
would be enough to satisfy them. That is what they requested though.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and then if we go in that direction, my request,
Mr. Chair, would be that we have a specific section, and perhaps, Mr. Ueoka, you can
work with Staff as well, because I wanna make certain then that we restate unequivocally
that nothing passed in this bill would have applicability or would in any way, shape, or
form affect the Cetacean Exhibition Bill, and specifically reference that, you know,
where that is not an issue. 'Cause I don't want this to be construed in any other way that
anything passed in this bill would in any way create a loophole underneath the other bill.
You understand what I'm saying?
MR. UEOKA: Yeah. I'm trying to think of where in...there's, I think there's similar language
already existing in the Maui County Code, which, you know, certain sections when
there's a conflict will --39-
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, well -MR. UEOKA: --prevent.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --I, I, that's where I'd say, you know, notwithstanding
anything, you know, this particular section or of this bill or whatever shall not be
applicable to, and then even if we have to just state for purposes...I do have the other bill
number. But I just, I'd rather be safe than sorry.
MR. UEOKA: Understood.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: And, and the business, basically Sea World and many of
these other entities that do have heavy lobbying and particularly with captivity and with
the APHIS regulations under the U.S. Department of Agriculture, I really do not
wanna... I don't wanna have Maui County's laws be challenged in, in any way. Although
they, I guess any law can be challenged. 1 prefer that if we're very clear about that, I just
don't wanna make, you know, let through, I guess, any conjecture about what we did or
did not mean through this bill. Thank you.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Response?
MR. UEOKA: Oh. Understood.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
CHAIR NISHIKI: If, it if there is language in there, Jeffrey, I hope that you will help this
Committee in, in drafting it or you could, could work towards that as we go through this,
this ordinance. I, I take it that all of you have read the ordinances, the ordinance, but I, I
need to ask Corporation Counsel initially where your concerns are and as we go and deal
with that area, what, perhaps, you want to see substituted. So, I am asking you, including
the task force language, if you have a concern in an area? And give your justification.
MR. UEOKA: Thank you, Mr. Nishiki. I guess starting on the front, the definition of collection,
I believe in your business regulation bill, the term used was "harvest". I think
Mr. Kaneshina can talk about that. If we could keep, I guess, on the same train of
thought and use the word "harvest" instead of "collection", I don't think that would be a
big problem. That would...
CHAIR NISHIKI: Hold on, now. Under the bill, which is aquarium purposes, the language
you'd like to see is? And, and, Staff, help us.
MR. KANESHINA: Mr. Chair, I think what Mr. Ueoka is referring to is further down the page
under the definition of collect.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Yeah.
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MR. KANESHINA: In, in, in the, our discussion, or the Committee's discussion of the Aquatic
Life Operation Bill -CHAIR NISHIKI: Yeah.
MR. KANESHINA: --that was passed by the Council back in July, there was the word "collect",
and it was, after discussion through the Council and through the Committee, the "collect"
was a little ambiguous, particularly, the comparison was well, someone can collect
baseball cards and someone can also go to the beach and collect ago. What, you know,
it, it's kind of vague. So, we switched gears and we, we then used the term "harvest".
And the word "harvest" or "harvesting" meant to catch or take aquatic life from the
marine environment. We then went through the bill and struck all instances of "collect"
and swapped it with the word "harvest". So, I think what Mr. Ueoka is, is pointing out is
maybe it would be, in the name of consistency, also use the term "harvest" with the same
definition and to also go through and strike all, all occurrences of "collect" and instead
replace it with the word "harvest" or harvesting" where appropriate. Thank you, Chair.
-

CHAIR NISHIKI: Committee, any, any concerns? Mr. Pontanilla?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: No, I don't have any concerns regarding utilizing harvest
instead of collection, but, you know, I just don't want to leave the first question that I
had, you know, in moving forward.
CHAIR NISHIKI: No, no, no. We're gonna address that.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Oh, okay.
CHAIR NISHIKI: I just wanted to...
VICE CHAIR PONTAN1LLA: No, 1 just wanna say that --

CHAIR NISHIKI: Go ahead.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: --you know, on Chapter 5...5 point whatever, two-six...there's,
there are the definitions in regards to what Mr. Ueoka is... not, Scott Kaneshina had just
read in regards to that particular bill. But 1 was looking under exemption item c, person's
who specialize in the holding of aquatic life in the state of captivity within the County for
education or scientific study and do not sell or distribute aquatic life for compensation. I
think that one area covered Maui Ocean Center at that time for this particular bill. So,
maybe something like this should be added in the proposal that we have before us. So, I
thought I'd... wanna, I wanna make that comment before I lose it. So, thank you.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Okay, we'll, we'll get to that point. Mr. Ueoka, again.
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MR. UEOKA: Okay, continuing on.
CHAIR NISHIKI: So, Members, if there are no problems with that recommendation in allowing
Staff to be consistent. Any of you have any concerns -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah.
CHAIR NISHIKI: --with what Jeff just stated?
CHAIR NISHIKI: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Mr. Chair. So, what Jeff just stated was using
the word "harvest"? Is that what you're talking about? Right?
CHAIR NISHIKI: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. And so those that collect reef fish are now gonna be
fish harvesters instead of fish collectors? If you look in the dictionary, harvest is
associated more with crops than with fish. There's one indication where it says fish, but
that's to catch, kill, and, you know, those things like dear and oysters and... so, why are
we going to "harvest" when the more appropriate word is to "collect"?
MR. UEOKA: I believe this is because there was a lot of confusion. People didn't want the
person that just goes down to the beach with their kid -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MR. UEOKA: --with one scoop net and one bucket picking up, you know, little fish in tide
pools, they then became collectors. You know, I was collecting -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MR. UEOKA: --you know, collecting the little fish and therefore subject to that bill. So, they
wanted to change it out and make it clear and, you know, define harvest. We can define
collect.

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh,
MR. UEOKA: But it just has that initial, 1 guess, shock to people that, wait. I'm a fish collector,
you know. I'm subject to this bill when actually when you read on, you're not collecting
for aquarium purposes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MR. UEOKA: So, actually you're not subject to the bill.
-42-

PUBLIC SERVICES COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

November 17, 2010

COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MR. UEOKA: But just to get rid of that initial shock to people. The HRS uses the term "take"
and "fishing" like you said.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MR. UEOKA: Very broad. They're broadly -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So, does the -MR. UEOKA: --defined.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --HRS use "harvest"?
MR. UEOKA: No.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So, we're, we're deciding if we wanna insert "harvest"
instead of "collect" or "collector" or "collection" in place of it then?
MR. UEOKA: Yeah. I guess we already did, the County already did use the word "harvest" in
the 5.26 Bill. It's, it was passed already. So, the word "harvest" is already being used in
the Maui County Code. So, like Mr. Kaneshina was saying, we're going for consistency
at this point.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Within our own legislation?
MR. UEOKA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay. Even, even though the State doesn't use harvest in,
in their HRS?
MR. UEOKA: That is my understanding.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. UEOKA: They don't...they use "take" or "fish" -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MR. UEOKA: --or "fishing".
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right. Okay. Thanks for the explanation.
- 43 -

PUBLIC SERVICES COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

November 17, 2010

CHAIR NISHIKI: Can we move on in regards to this? Go ahead, Mr. Ueoka, the other area,
continue.
MR. UEOKA: I guess in the first sentence of 6.04(G), 1 believe the "for sale" would almost be
redundant because the definition of aquarium purposes includes "sale" in there.
Moving on to 6.04.040(G)(1)(b), I believe it would be, the...it's on the next page.
"Intentionally, knowingly, recklessly, or negligently carrying or causing to be carried in
or upon any vehicle or other conveyance in a manner resulting in injury or death to the
aquatic life", and they added in the section, "or contrary to current Federal regulations for
transporting aquatic life by commercial airlines". That to me is a little difficult, would be
difficult for the County to enforce and I'm not sure if you'd want to include that in a bill.
The enforcement agency would then have to be aware, and I'm not sure about
jurisdictional issues at that point once it's...I'm not sure what they meant by this. But if
they meant once it's in the air, I'm pretty sure at the airports and in the air it's out of the
County's jurisdiction. And I'm not sure if they're gonna have inspectors to inspect the
packing of the fish, but if...I'm just not sure how it would work. It might be difficult.
And beside the point, everyone is going to be required to follow these Federal regulations
regardless of whether or not the Maui County Code prescribes that they shall follow it.
Their law's already somewhere else.
Other than that, the last...
CHAIR NISHIKI: Hold on. Hold on. It, are you still on this language, Jeff, or you're gonna
move?
MR. UEOKA: I was gonna move on.
CHAIR NISHIKI: I'm not gonna let you move. Rene, your statement in regards to why
the... and you heard what our attorney has referenced.
MS. UMBERGER: I...yes. So, is there a specific question? Just you're wondering why...
CHAIR NISHIKI: No, he's asking that we eliminate it all just because of the inability.
MS. LTMBERGER: If, if the understanding is that it's automatically included because it's
Federal and that thus it's redundant. Is that what you...1 believe Jeff was saying it's a
redundant statement because it's already illegal because it's a Federal requirement, so
then it's redundant. Then I think the task force would be okay with that.
CHAIR NISHIKI Jeff?
MR. UEOKA: Yeah. I, they're gonna be required to follow the Federal regulations regardless
of what 6.04.040 says.
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CHAIR NISHIKI. Committee Members, we're going to recommend to eliminate that language
if there are no objections?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Mr. Mateo?
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Mr. Chairman?
CHAIR NISHIKI: Mr. Mateo, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Mr. Chairman, I don't have problems with eliminating the
language. However, Mr. Ueoka brings up, you know, a question that I was waiting to ask
for a while.
CHAIR NISHIK1: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: And that question has to do with enforcement, period. We,
we're, we're drafting this, who's gonna enforce? What is the enforcement entity? There
is penalties. Who is the enforcement entity and, and how is enforcement gonna be done?
Mr. Ueoka?
MR. UEOKA: I'm not sure who's gonna enforce it. I cannot say for certain. 6.04 is the animal
control section of the Maui County Code. I believe there have been discussions with
Ms. Jocelyn Bouchard from the Humane Society who also takes care of the animal
control. I've never had a long discussion with her on this. As far as the prosecution, that
will be handled by the Prosecuting Attorney's office and it's criminal offenses so it will
go to the courts. So, the courts will be the entity overseeing that. But yes, as far as the
specific, not sure about enforcement, but it is under the animal control section of the
Maui County Code.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yeah. But...yeah. You know, okay, that part's fine but the
courts... somebody, you know, before somebody gets to the court system, something has
to occur. Is it complaint driven? I mean, I don't know what the enforcement requirement
is gonna be. How is it gonna be handled? Are we subjecting John Q Public? Are nine of
us gonna be deputized? I mean what, what's gonna happen? I mean, I don't know how
do we get to the court system. So, maybe, Ms. Umberger, if you guys had the discussion
during the task force, if you can at, at least share with us some kind of an idea?
MS. UMBERGER: Yes. Yes. The task force absolutely discussed this at length and it is the
idea that it would be complaint driven primarily because people that this bill affects
would be required to submit reports. And so based on the, for instance, the mortality
rates that are being presented in the reports and filed. If people wanted to go and look at
that and see what's going on. Also, the, the Maui Humane Society will be receiving
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training, specific training that the U.S. Humane Society is going to help with to teach
them how best to enforce this to make it as easy as possible.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. And in that discussion, was, was dialogue continued as
to how this, how complaints would be addressed in terms of filing these complaints?
MS. UMBERGER: No, I don't think it got into that level of specifics. You mean similar to the,
the other bill -COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yes.
MS. UMBERGER: --that talked about the citations -COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Yes.
MS. UMBERGER: --being written? No, that has, that...we did not go into that level.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Okay. Thank you. Thank you, Mr. Chairman.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Mr. Molina?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah. Thank you, Mr. Chair. If I could add into Mr. Mateo's
inquiry. If I could analogize it, it was like if you were witnessing animal abuse, any kind
of animal, who would you call? The Maui Humane Society, right? So, this is what,
basically, the same premise if I'm correct, Ms. Umberger. Right? If, if someone reports
there's some kind of abuse with the fish, you go to the animal control people, which in
our County is the Maui Humane Society or you could call the police or whatever then of
course they'd refer you to the Maui Humane Society. So, I don't think the intent was
ever to create a special agency of policemen, if you will, to focus just on fish. So, it's
just complaint driven for like any other type of animal abuse, you call the Humane
Society. So, that's my understanding and the premise for this bill. Thank you.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Thank you.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: I I'm gonna pass.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MATEO: Because I get worried whenever we pass an ordinance, you
know, and, and, you know, it's kahiole [sic] „ . no more teeth, you know. And that always
bothers me because this is so vital to us. This is so important. And if it is so important,
you know, a lot of the task force justifications was written as justifications because they
cited real specific points in case. You know, and here we are coming up with an
ordinance that we say is really important, the task force did this and they justified every
single consideration. It was justified. Then the bottom line comes enforcement. We're
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so weak in enforcement and yet it is such an important component. The enforcement
abilities holds the substance of the ordinance together. And what I'm saying is that's our
loophole. That is the puka that we need to, you know, close up so we're sure that when
these occurrences do, you know, happen, that consequences are there because it's
recognized in the penalties section, but it's just that, you know, I go back to enforcement
again. And I just don't know how to, how to address it at this point because yeah, the
Humane Society, but they're limited. They're limited as well. So, I just have, I just have
concerns about the weakness in our ability to enforce. And that's, that's all my issue is.
Thank you, Mr. Chair.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Mr. Pontanilla in regards to this area.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Yeah, just like to share something, and...that we
corrected in last week, anyway, in regards to complaint driven. We need to ensure that
the Humane Society is aware that if we do enforce through complaint driven, I don't
know how many complaints we're gonna get. But in, in the sign ordinance we had so
many complaints that even our inspectors couldn't handle. So, that's an issue, you know,
if we go complaint driven. What is the numbers? Hopefully that the numbers are not that
great that Humane Society can handle that. But if it's gonna be massive, then it's just
gonna bog down the, it's gonna bog down the County. Thank you.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Jo Anne?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yes, and with regard to the reports. Who do the reports go
to?
CHAIR NISHIKI. Humane Society should be receiving -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
CHAIR NISHIKI: --the complaints.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh no, I'm not, I'm talking about complaint reports. I'm
saying that if they have mortality, there's a requirement for reporting if there's any deaths
or all this stuff. So, where do those reports go?

MR. UEOKA: Currently, the language says the Finance Director.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay. So, they go to Department of Finance because there is
ostensibly some kind of a permit, right?
MR. UEOKA: No, this...there's no permit for this. This is an animal control bill. It's cruelty to
animals sort of thing. I...
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Oh, okay. Well...
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MR. UEOKA: I'm not sure why it goes to the Director of Finance.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. Well, I think it, the reason...and this is why we, you
know, Mr. Mateo brings up a really good point because to be consistent, I understand the
justification for it going to Department of Finance. Because originally when the permits
were issued for, you know, oversight in the other bill that we passed that was similar to
this, they were the ones actually charged with the responsibility for issuing the permits.
So, if you're going to now send these reports to the Director of Finance, but the
complaints are going to the Maui Humane Society, you know, it's a little bit different
animal, if you will. And no pun intended. But we need to figure out, all right, if there's
an enforcement entity, then if they're getting reports, one of the mechanisms that I see,
Mr. Chair, is that they would be able to look at these reports or say well, you reported to
us that you, you know, you had so many deaths of yellow tangs or whatever it was, and
yet, you know, we have evidence here because we have photographs given to us just, you
know, like they had on the example, I guess, on the Big Island. So, I, I think we need to
be very careful that we don't zig where we should be zagging and that the entity that is
responsible for overseeing or if we're gonna give resources at all to help monitor for
enforcement, that they also have tools or some mechanism to get these reports. And then
the question is well, if they get the report, you know, what, what is the next, I guess,
administrative rules or, you know, how is there if somebody files a false report. I don't
know. But I think Mr. Mateo brings up really good points that, you know, we just have
to think this through logically and reasonably as to where these responsibilities lie. So,
that would be my, you know, my, my request.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA. Chair?
CHAIR NISHIKI: Any other comments from Committee Members in regards to this area?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA. Chair?
CHAIR NISHIKI: Mr. Molina, go ahead

.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah, I'll yield to the Committee Members if they have any
questions. Well, I just wanted to interject, Mr. Chairman, if we're looking at volume of
complaints for fish versus say dogs and cats, I would guess, venture to guess that you
probably have way more complaints with vicious dogs or barking dogs and cat, feral cats
and so forth versus fish. I don't know, maybe if Ms. Umberger can chime in. From your
observations being in the diving industry, do you see a ton of complaints now coming in
if, if say this bill is enacted and what kind of pressure it would put on the Humane
Society and if they would need additional personnel based on the potential amount of
complaints that could occur with something like this? If I may, Mr. Chairman, ask for
Ms. Umberger's thoughts on this?
CHAIR NISHIKI: Go ahead.
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MS. UMBERGER: Thank you. Jocelyn Bouchard, the head of Maui Humane Society, fully
participated in the task force and reviewed all of this. She had no problems. She in fact
suggested much of what we're discussing right now. So, in terms of who the reports go
to, the fact that it will be complaint driven, she completely understands the nature of that.
We don't expect there to be a flood of complaints. And they would investigate it as they
would investigate any other act of cruelty. And that's what we will be helping them to
understand how to best implement effectively and inexpensively.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Thank you, Ms. Umberger. And, and Mr. Chair, if I
could just give one last -CHAIR NISHIKI: Go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: --one thought. Already you can see the impacts of this
Council already considering legislation like this. You see...you've heard from
Ms. Umberger, some collectors have already leaving the County. So, those who involved
in this kind of trade that could, and I stress could violate any ordinance that the County
may put out, it's already having an effect on this. So, I again, I would venture to guess
that the amount of violations could be minimal in terms of volume compared to, you
know, cruelty to other animals, dogs and cats and chickens and whatever else. So, the
impacts to the Humane Society in terms of resources, I, you know, I, I dare to guess that
it would not have any major, there wouldn't be a major need for additional resources
from them. And I'm fully aware of the budget constraints that the next Council will face,
so I just wanna throw out my opinions on this, Mr. Chair. Thank you.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Any other discussion in this area or concern? Mr. Pontanilla?
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Actually, not a concern, but probably public education, once we
approve something like this that the public will understand that, you know, only a certain
group will be basically subject to this ordinance. And that's what we need to do because,
you know, like you say a child with a fishing net goes over there and scoops fish and

someone that doesn't know the ordinance, you know, can make a complaint. So, we need
to educate the public in regards to this particular bill, and if it's going to be complaint
driven that they understand that, you know, there are exemptions. So that, you know, like
Mr. Molina had said, hopefully, and Ms. Umberger had said, that hopefully the
complaints is very minimal.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Any other discussion?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chair?
CHAIR NISHIKI: Comments? Mr. Molina?
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COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: 1 just wanted to follow up on Mr. Pontanilla's suggestions.
And I think it's a great idea with public education. We have the MVB that comes to this
Council for funding and this is one way they can help promote their industry and possibly
fund working with the reef industry to promote educating our visitors and implementing
an education program being that they do receive funding from us. This is one good way
they can utilize some of their funding as well. So, I think that's a great suggestion from
Mr. Pontanilla. Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Staff, take into consideration the fact that what was suggested by
Mr. Pontanilla should this regulation, this ordinance pass that that concern be put in the
Committee report. Any objections to that, Committee Members, of mentioning public
education and perhaps a source of funding?
Mr. Ueoka... hold on... any other concern in regards to this area? Mr. Ueoka, go ahead.
MR. UEOKA: I guess, so in the next paragraph the report, rather than the Director of Finance, it
would probably be best to send it to the Humane Society. So, I noticed in the Code they
do say, you know, talk about the Humane Society. So, we should probably, biannual, say
biannually submit to the Director of the Humane Society authorized to enforce this
chapter. So...to make it clear.
CHAIR NISHIK1: And, and, and that falls under the Department of Housing and Human
Concerns, I think, the Humane Society. Yeah. So, they essentially should receive finally
the, their report from the Humane Society.
MR. UEOKA: Yeah, I believe the...1 m not an expert on this, but the Housing, Department of
Housing and Human Concerns gives the Humane Society their grant to operate. I don't
know if they actually oversee the Humane Society other than... yeah, other than giving
them money. And I'm sure they must meet certain performance standards. I think it
would be okay if we were to just have the report submitted directly to the Director of the
Humane Society, who at this time is Ms. Jocelyn Bouchard, and just maybe make it
clearer for. .probably an easier step to understand for people. But again that's...
CHAIR NISHIKI. Any comments in regards to Mr. Ueoka's suggestion, Committee Members?
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA. Chair?
CHAIR NISFIIKI. Mr. Molina, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA. In conferring with Member Johnson, she earlier made a
comment about including the name of private entities in ordinances. Maybe a more
broader term like the appropriate animal enforcement agency rather than naming, you
know, Maui Humane Society.
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MR. UEOKA: Oh, we're not naming Maui Humane Society. That's why we have the humane
society authorized to enforce this chapter.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: All right

.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: All right. Okay, whatever, whatever is appropriate or fits.
Yeah.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Next, Mr. Ueoka?
MR. UEOKA: And finally, on the last paragraph, there is a section that says... and they added
on, "and each specimen may be considered a separate offense". Just so we're all clear,
that may be difficult to enforce and it could mean if they had...they'd be subject to ten
different, separate misdemeanors just, you know, if they had a bucket of ten fish and for
some reason they were deemed to have treated them in an inhumane manner. Just so
everyone's aware, it would be, it would be ten different counts of a misdemeanor. I'm, I
don't know if that's the way you guys wanted to look at it or not, or if it would just be
one per ticket. That's the Council's prerogative, of course. And that's, those, that was
the last of my concerns.
CHAIR NISHIKI: That language, "and each specimen may be considered a separate offense".
There's a problem? Or is that a policy decision?
MR. UEOKA: That is your policy decision. I just was making it clear that it does mean that
someone could be held for multiple counts on one excursion, I guess, or one bucket of
fish, let's say.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Okay. Let's, let's hear from Rene because obviously...and then--excuse me,
Jo Anne--and then maybe -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: No, that's fine.
CHAIR NISHIKI: --questions can be asked. Go ahead.
MS. UMBERGER: Yes, that was the, because each act can result in the deaths of up to hundreds
of fish, that we thought that it was important that it be spelled out that each act could, it
could be applied per fish, per specimen. Yeah.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Jo Anne, go ahead.
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COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah, and, and because in the earlier part we talk about, you
know, the, I guess the eggs and, you know, all of the... yeah, it says... oh, maybe we
don't. Maybe we did take that out. Anyway, how do you treat, like if there's a female
and she has eggs? You know, is each one of those eggs... you know, I mean... or is just
the fish itself the specimen irrespective of the eggs?
MS. UMBERGER: What we understood was that it would always be the prosecutor's
prerogative to, as to how they were going to pursue it, and that by putting something like
this in that each specimen may be considered. It would be up to probably however they
determine it, whether it's the evidence that they've gathered as to how it's going to be
prosecuted. If, if you're asking about the definition of aquatic life -COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Uh-huh

.

MS. UMBERGER: --that says, it includes any part, product, egg, or offspring thereof. I can see
it could be a problem.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. Yeah. I, I have no problem. I mean, like if there's
ten little fish or something and they're very valuable, like the, one of our testifiers was
talking about rare damselfish or something, I mean that might be worthy. But my
concern would be not extending it beyond that, because if the, if they, if you're gonna
count individual eggs, excuse me, you know, that's, that to me would not be something
that...you know, I just because there's thousands of little eggs, you know. I, I'm
assuming, you know, and I'm not a fish collector, but, you know, these... it just would
bother me because you're not gonna know when you take a fish if it's, if it's, you know,
got little babies or not. I don't know. I'm thinking of, I guess, more like sturgeon
probably. That's what I have experience with.
CHAIR NISHIKI Just like a male, if he's convicted of, of, of... murdered all his little sperm
eggs.
-

COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON:

(Laughs)... Yeah, right. I guess so.

CHAIR NISHIKI: Anyway. Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: I mean, that, that would be carrying it to the absurd length, so
I just say yeah. You know, I mean when I look at specimen, the individual fish.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Okay.
MR. UEOKA: Chair? Chair?
CHAIR NISHIK1: You wanna get in the middle of this?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: . . .(Laughter). . .
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CHAIR NISHIKI: Go ahead.
MR. UEOKA: I'll take a shot at it. I'm not sure if someone could be, depending on how they
treated it because the definition of inhumane treatment would be piercing or deflating the
swim bladder. 1 don't think you can do that to an egg. Cutting or trimming the fin or
spine of any fish--can't do that to an egg. I don't know if you can withhold food for more
than 24 hours for transport purposes to an egg. So, I just was doing it as this, informing
you of it as a point of clarification that it was a per specimen basis. I don't think you
necessarily need to worry about a pregnant or... I think...they're probably pregnant fish.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and -MR. UEOKA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --the, the only reason I asked that was because of the earlier
definition where it does say marine environment and includes any part, product, egg, or
offspring thereof. That was where, you know, I, I don't want this to be going to any...
MR. UEOKA: Yeah. In, in the prior language, there were other . there was...the definition of
inhumane treatment was broader and it could have been carried on to the, I guess let's
stick with the, the egg.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah.
MR. UEOKA: Yeah. But maybe that definition could be narrowed down further even at this
point.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. And, and that, that's my only concern, Mr. Chair -CHAIR NISHIKI: Okay.
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: --with adding that language on about each specimen .
CHAIR NISHIKI: All right.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Chair?
CHAIR NISHIKI: Are you done, Jo Anne?
COUNCILMEMBER JOHNSON: Yeah. That's it.
CHAIR NISHIKL Mr. Medeiros, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR N1SHIKI: In this area again, yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. And, Mr. Ueoka or Ms. Umberger, how are we
defining specimen in this?
MR. UEOKA: Specimen is not defined in this.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So, what is a specimen?
MR. UEOKA: I guess you would probably look in a dictionary. I don't have a specific
definition for you.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Well, I think if we're gonna use a word, we, we should
know what it means. On, on the review, did, did Corp. Counsel review this or this came
directly from the task force?
MR. UEOKA: This was submitted to Mr. Molina, I believe, from the task force. Corp. Counsel
has not reviewed this.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh, okay. So, let me ask Ms. Umberger. What was your
intent for specimen to mean?
MS. UMBERGER: I think it was just a generic term for each aquatic, each animal that's...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Like species?
MS. UMBERGER: Yes. It could be each. But it's individual.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So, you're, you're...
MS. UMBERGER: A specimen is an individual, I believe.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So, if somebody hurt 100 of the same kind of species fish,
it's 100 specimens?
MS. UMBERGER: Yes.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Wow. So, like that, what was brought to our attention
about the four or six hundred tang that they found dead on the Big Island, that's
400 specimens? So, 400 separate offenses? Wow. That's gonna be pretty tough to,
to...the logistics of enforcing that, you know. I mean, you take it to court and the judge
says well, what do you have. I have 400 offenses. How's that gonna appear to the judge,
you know? I, I'm just trying to make it...I can see that the number of, count of affected
aquatic life that you're referring to is important, but I think also important is if there were
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ten different species of fish, that that would seem to be more appropriate to be ten
different offenses. I don't know what your thoughts are on that.
MS. UMBERGER: We, we had that discussion.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MS. UMBERGER: What we understood from one of the task force members who was,
previously worked in the prosecutor's office -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MS. UMBERGER: --was that in, in any case, whether this language was there or not, it would
always be up to the prosecutor's discretion as to whether or not it was going to be per
specimen or not. That they -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Oh.
MS. UMBERGER: --they had that discretion. And so the idea was that we, we could
recommend this just to let you know that, that we're serious about this. Some of the
Council Members had mentioned that they'd hoped for a strong penalty section and that
we were -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MS. UMBERGER: --just going along with that. That yes, we, we are serious about this and so
please take this under consideration. I don't think the task force would object if you
decided best to remove it.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I, Mr. Ueoka, so when we draft and develop a bill for an
ordinance like this, within the section that this comes under in the Maui County Code, we
normally have a definitions section, right?
MR. UEOKA: Correct.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So, do you advise that specimen be given a definition in the
definition section or just left to the discretion of who reads this?
MR. UEOKA: That would... if specimen doesn't work or it, it doesn't convey immediately the
idea you're trying to pass along -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MR. UEOKA: --you may want to define it or change the word from specimen to exactly what
you want it to mean.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I just want to be sure -MR. UEOKA: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: --what the, what the task force intention was is clear. You
know, you can go to the clinic and give a specimen. You know.
CHAIR NISHIKI. Yeah. And...
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So, let's be clear on what it is, you know.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Yeah. And, and, and I wanna say that you know when we added it, added in
the whole violation area and, and put these high amounts, it was already to address that
concern. In fact, 1 think Sol was the one said that let's act like we're for real
.

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah

.

CHAIR NISHIKI: And so that's the reason why we talked about 500 as the minimal and 2,000
as the, as the maximum and then a year in jail. But are you still wanting to deal with the
language that the task force is recommending? If not, I would say eliminate it and, from
this ordinance unless there are any objections of keeping it in? If there are no comments,
the Chair is going to recommend that we eliminate that language. Any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Okay. That was Mr. Ueoka's concerns, and I think we've dealt with them.
Let's go and deal with, because I know Mr. Pontanilla has already a doctor's
appointment. And, and let me tell you, Committee Members, if... I'm going to stop this
meeting at 12 o'clock because as was suggested by the Council Chair, we can draft this
legislation and pass it at our, at our next meeting for first reading and still have enough
time to pass it by the end of the year. Okay. So, I see Danny giggling, but just to give
you an idea that the Chair is not really wanting to rush this through but wanting to pass
this ordinance before the end of the, end of the year. That is something that is, I think,
the goal of all of you. But any areas then, Joe, that you'd want to deal with? Then we
can vote on in this ordinance.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Okay. Yeah, the only concern that I have actually involves
Maui Ocean Center -CHAIR NISHIKI Okay

.

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: --and, you know, what they had brought forward. Because they
do educational displays and, you know, they have the kids go over there take a look at
different species of, we have at the aquarium. You know, it is very important that, you
- 56 -

PUBLIC SERVICES COMMITTEE MINUTES
Council of the County of Maui

November 17, 2010

know, education for our... you know, not all kids go into the ocean. You know, I, I think,
you know, some kids for, for the first time, in fact some people for the first time see fish
specimens probably in an aquarium. And, you know, I, I do have grandchildren that
periodically go to Maui Ocean Center just to get acquaint, acquainted with the different
type of specimens that we have in the aquarium. So, for me, my interest is, you know,
more personal than anything else.
And one of the things that we, we, we talked about... and maybe, maybe Corporation
Counsel can give us some language. And the language that I saw was in Chapter 5.26,
you know, which is the taking of fish, and we had inserted an exemption area, section
And one of the. „the section is 5.26.030, exemptions and item c, persons who specialize
in the holding of aquatic life in a state of captivity within the County for education or
scientific study and do not sell or distribute aquatic life for compensation, I think that
would cover Maui Ocean Center's concern. Right now, they had offered something in
regards to the deletion of "or for public exhibition or display" in that one section,
section 2. So, maybe Corporation can give, Corporation Counsel can give us some
language that we can add to section 2 to, to ensure that, you know, the effects of Maui
Ocean Center is, is taken away.
.

CHAIR NISHIKI Do you understand what is being proposed?
MR. UEOKA: Yes.
CHAIR NISHIKI: That the language that the Ocean Center is asking to change not be changed,
however, the Ocean Center be given an exemption like we did in the other bill, I guess,
Joe, that we have
.

VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Five point two six?
CHAIR NISHIKI: Yeah. Yeah, go ahead.
MR. UEOKA: Mr. Pontanilla, 5.26.030 of the Maui County Code, Section or Section 3 states,
"Organizations that specialize in the holding of aquatic life in a state of captivity within
the County for education or scientific study and do not sell or distribute aquatic life for
compensation". This chapter does not apply to them. We could put in something very
similar, "This subsection shall not apply to organizations that," and just copy it if that's
your preference.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Yeah. And what would be the effect as far as leaving the word
in section 2, "or for public exhibition or display". You know, what is the difference
between what is, what you just had told us and, and in regards to this one, one area that,
you know, they wanted deleted?
MR. UEOKA: Back up here. Aquarium...
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CHAIR NISHIKI: If you don't have an answer, you don't need to give it to us, okay.
MR. UEOKA: I'm not sure. Again, I'm, I'm not gonna be the one issuing citations for this. I
won't be the person deeming whether or not a person is guilty of an accusation. But I
don't know how that would really change things. I don't understand the train of thought
completely as to why "or for public exhibition or display", why the deletion of that would
exempt the Maui Ocean Center. I don't clearly understand that. Again, this is, this bill is
to prevent the inhumane treatment of animals by any person who collects aquatic life for
aquarium purposes. You know, so if you were to take public exhibition or display out of
the definition of aquarium purposes, then if you sell it to someone who's gonna
publically exhibit it or display it, technically it'd, you know, it'd be different. You know,
it would change the meaning of this bill.
CHAIR NISHIKI: You're gutting the bill.
MR. UEOKA: It would change the meaning, yeah. However, I think they even recommended in
their letter, the Maui Ocean Center, that we do include language to exempt, you know,
for scientific research governed by standards or accepted education or medicinal
practices.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Right. Right. That's what's going to be added.
MR. UEOKA: So, that's, that's more follows the HRS language. The 5.26 language is a little
different, but...
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Well, if you can work up some language that would indicate
that so that, you know, not only for myself but I don't know the rest of the Council
Members if they would be comfortable with that as to what was presented to us by
testimony in regards to Maui Ocean Center. You know, as I say, you know, my personal
interest is the educational part, so if you could.
MR. UEOKA: We can look into that.
VICE-CHAIR PONTANILLA: Thank you. Thank you, Chairman

.

CHAIR NISHIKI: Does anyone here want to help us in this area that Joe's trying to address?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS Chair?
-

CHAIR NISHIKI: Mr. Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. I, you know, I listened to what Corp. Counsel
explained and 1 kinda agree what the difference would be if you deleted that section
You know, if you're in the aquarium business, you know, that's what you're doing, right?
You're displaying what you have in the aquarium. I think the best explanation and the
.
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intent of what Maui Ocean Center wants would probably come from Mr. Gorman, if you
wanna bring him down to explain to us what was the purpose of that? Because otherwise
we're just speculating, you know, and surmising different perspectives on it. Why don't
we hear it from the people that are suggesting it?
CHAIR NISHIKI: You wanna hear him again'?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: I wanna hear just that.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Are there any objections?
COUNCIL MEMBERS: No objections.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chair? Oh, Chair, sorry.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Mr. Molina, go ahead.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: I just wanna offer a suggestion, being that I know that you're
conscientious about the time, maybe Mr. Gorman could respond to the question in
writing for Mr. Medeiros. Then at your next meeting, which you've indicated we'll
probably address this, that might be, you know, he can memorialize his response to, to
the Committee and give him time to respond to Mr. Medeiros' question. So, I don't
know if Mr. Medeiros would just like to, well, you know, restate his question to
Mr. Gorman and at a later point, at the next meeting he can bring his response. Because
of your time.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. Yeah.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Mr. Gorman, did you hear what we said? Without gutting this bill, for your
own Ocean Center, we wanna make sure that you're not, that is not your intention.
MR. GORMAN: Our intention is not to gut the bill

.

CHAIR NISHIKI: Okay, so the... if you wanna come up?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah.
MR. GORMAN: Sure.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Mr. Medeiros?
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah. Thank you. Very quickly. Mr. Gorman, in item I of
the amendments that you suggested or your organization suggested, to delete or, or for
public exhibition and display, what is the intent of that and what is the impact on the
Maui Ocean Center if that's not deleted?
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MR. GORMAN: The intent for us is we feel it's, it's directed specifically against an entity,
which is Maui Ocean Center, as we are the only facility in this County that is actually
holding for exhibit and display.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: So, you would consider large aquariums at hotels and
restaurants not displaying or exhibiting?
MR. GORMAN. They are displaying.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Well then, then the intent wouldn't be strictly against Maui
Ocean Center.
MR. GORMAN: We are more for public because we are actually bringing the public into our
facility for the specific purpose of actually viewing aquariums and understanding and
learning from those aquariums. It's, it's the existence, our existence is for that specific
purpose -COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Right.
MR. GORMAN: --is to foster one, their understanding, is to, to teach, and the only way we can
achieve that is actually public exhibit and display. We actually advocate and charge and,
and our, the public to come. We invite them. We go out and seek the public to come to
our facility for one specific purpose, and that is to experience public exhibition and
display of marine life.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay.
MR. GORMAN: It's not accidental. It's intentional. It's, it's not they may see an aquarium
while they're visiting our hotel.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Uh-huh.
MR. GORMAN. It's actually we intentionally go out and seek their public participation in our
facility.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Okay, Mr. Chairman, I, I think, you know, unless other
Members have questions for Mr. Gorman, to further pursue this probably be better by -CHAIR NISHIKI: I do.
COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS --correspondence or something
-

CHAIR NISHIKI: Yeah, I do.
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COUNCILMEMBER MEDEIROS: Yeah.
CHAIR NISHIKI: You know, if, if it is being suggested by Mr. Pontanilla to give you that
exemption, then why in this bill would we need to eliminate that? You're getting the
exemption.
MR. GORMAN: If we're getting exemption, then we wouldn't need that to be eliminated.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Exactly.
MR. GORMAN: Right.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Thank you.
MR. GORMAN: If we're getting the exemption.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Thank you. Any other areas that you have that we may need to relook? And
again, Members, if you do have other areas, please send them to Staff. Other than that,
the Chair is going to direct Staff specifically to address the area that was discussed in
regards to Mr. Pontanilla in giving them an exemption.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA. Chair?
CHAIR NISHIKI: And, and Maui Ocean Center, not that we treat you with any favorable
concern, but if you have any other thing you have to say in regards to the other one that
you wanted changed, the other definition, if we give you that exemption, would we have
to deal with the other change that you have? I just wanna have it on the record now. And
if you would come up to the podium, please? And it's not to say that the, the, the Chair is
not going to allow you to come again and give public testimony, but I think that we're
kind of bending for you guys. You know that. So, please don't put us in any
circumstance where the thrust of this bill is totally diminished. Because we've heard
from the other testifiers and we're trying to come to some solution. Okay?
MR. GORMAN: Yes, thank you
CHAIR NISHIKI Thank you

.

.

MR. GORMAN: If the terms have changed to those that are similar in the other bill, person's
that specialize in the holding of aquatic life in a state of captivity within the County for
education or scientific study and do not sell or distribute aquatic life for compensation,
then our objections would then be pointless.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Okay. Mr. Molina, 11 -COUNCILMEMBER MOL1NA• Yes.
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CHAIR NISHIKI:
his answer, but --

give you the, a chance to ask him any questions. You, you've heard

COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: You know...
CHAIR NISHIKI: --he's saying we can eliminate whatever they're being proposed should we
create this exemption.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA. Well, you know, certainly I appreciate the Maui Ocean Center.
And, you know, the intent of this bill is not to target the Maui Ocean Center.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: The whole intent was to provide accountability for anybody in
this kind of trade, because as we've seen the research is showing that the more of these
reef fishes are collected, it has an impact on our ecosystem. And that's the whole thrust
of this ordinance, and was never at anytime targeting the Maui Ocean Center, at least,
you know, the way I see it. And to provide any consequences with penalties there for
anyone who decides to go about and try to exploit our ocean resources. And I do thank
Mr. Gorman for coming out here and sharing the concerns. And just to caution the
Committee, I mean, yeah, it's okay to give leeway, but you give away too much then, you
know, we, we wanna make sure everybody is, has to follow a certain set of rules. And of
course there may be some exceptions in certain areas, and that's fine. But just be, be
cautious and, and think, think it through as I know all Committee Members will. And I
wanna thank Ms. Umberger for her leadership on the task force. I think we made a lot of
headway here today compared to when we first discussed this bill. So, a lot of
compromises and I think a lot of progress. And to you, Mr. Chairman, for bringing this
matter forth. And with your goal of hopefully getting this passed out during this term.
So, I just wanted to thank you.
And, also just a quick correction to Mr. Ueoka. Ms. Umberger, I believe, you, you
distributed all of these to every Council Member, if I'm correct? Your task force
recommendations initially to all the offices?
MS. UMBERGER: 1 ..no. we only gave it to your office -COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. So it didn't go through...okay.
MS. UMBERGER: --with the understanding that you'd distribute it.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: 'Cause I was told otherwise, all the other Council Members
got it. Okay. Yeah, we did doc trans it to the, to your Committee, Mr. Chairman. So I
just wanted to make sure.
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CHAIR NISHIKI. So it's in there.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA. Yeah.
CHAIR NISHIKI: No one -COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah.
CHAIR NISHIKI: --no one did not get it.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Okay. Yeah, because it was brought to my attention that all
Council Members had got it. So anyway just wanted to make that quick clarification
so...but yeah, thank you again. And no, no further questions. I think he's been quite a
busy man here today, so I think he's had to answer a lot of questions. So I just wanna
thank Mr. Gorman for being here. Thank you, Chairman.
CHAIR NISHIKI: Thank you, Mr. Gorman.
MR. GORMAN: Thank you, Chair.
CHAIR NISHIKI. As, as, as, as great as the scientific community is, I think that none of us want
to see too many cloned indigenous -COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Yeah.
CHAIR NISHIKI: --fishes coming around Maui County to be honest with you.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Chair, can I also add to that?
CHAIR NISHIKI: It's all about what the scientific community can create.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA Yeah, that...
CHAIR NISHIKI: And, and then that's all I have to say in regards to that.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA. Yeah, 1 know. I wanna add into that.
CHAIR NISHIKI Yeah.
COUNCILMEMBER MOLINA: Even the discussion was good because we learned a lot more
about what the Maui Ocean Center does as well along with educating and displaying, but
their work with the scientific community, and as Mr. Gorman had mentioned, the genetic,
I guess, genetic experimentation and so forth. So, I think it's just healthy for the
community to know fully what the Maui Ocean Center does. Thank you, Chair.
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CHAIR NISHIKI: Thank you, again. Any last comments aside from me getting a little testy,
and I apologize. Seeing none, this meeting is in recess . . .(gavel). . excuse me, this
meeting is adjourned. . (gavel).. .
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